
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

March 15, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by John Ney, Pastor of Christ the King Community Church
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentations

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

March 15, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by John Ney, Pastor of Christ the King Community Church
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions

c. Community Presentationsc. Community Presentations
i. Fire Department 2015 Annual Report

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on March 1, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
c. Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member
d. Re-appointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board
e. Interlocal Agreement for HVAC Unit Replacement at Oak Harbor Library
f. Tyler Technologies Agreement - Tyler Cashiering Software

c. Community Presentations
i. Fire Department 2015 Annual Report

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on March 1, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
c. Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member
d. Re-appointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board
e. Interlocal Agreement for HVAC Unit Replacement at Oak Harbor Library
f. Tyler Technologies Agreement - Tyler Cashiering Software

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9171
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9174
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=7972
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9181
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9177
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9111
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9115
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9153


g. Purchase Authorization - Police Department Copier
h. Janitorial Contract Services Extension
i. Prothman PSA: HR Director Recruitment

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-2018 Wastewater Rates
b. Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd Avenue Properties Rezoning

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

g. Purchase Authorization - Police Department Copier
h. Janitorial Contract Services Extension
i. Prothman PSA: HR Director Recruitment

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-2018 Wastewater Rates
b. Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd Avenue Properties Rezoning

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. None

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. Nonea. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9153
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9151
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9127
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9176
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9129
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1018&iID=9161


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Fire Department 2015 Annual 
Report

FROM: Ray Merrill, Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Present the 2015 Fire Department annual report to the Mayor and City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.c.i
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Fire Department 2015 Annual 
Report

FROM: Ray Merrill, Fire Chief

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Present the 2015 Fire Department annual report to the Mayor and City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUTPREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report

3

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457465078_at.pdf


4



Cover Photo:  

2015 Annual Report of the City of Oak Harbor Fire Department 
Published March 2016, Oak Harbor, Washington 

All Rights Reserved © 2016 

(1)  Every city and town shall evaluate its 
level of service and deployment deliv‐
ery and response  me objec ves on an 
annual basis. The evalua ons shall be 
based on data rela ng to level of ser‐
vice, deployment, and the achievement 
of each response  me objec ve in each 
geographic area within the jurisdic on 
of the city or town. 

(2)  Beginning in 2007, every city and town 
shall issue an annual wri en report 
which shall be based on the annual 
evalua ons required by subsec on (1) 
of this sec on. 

(a)  The annual report shall define the 
geographic areas and circum‐
stances in which the requirements 
of this standard are not being 
met. 

(b)  The annual report shall explain 
the predictable consequences of 
any deficiencies and address the 
steps that are necessary to 
achieve compliance. 

[2005 c 376 § 104.] 

RCW 35.103.040  —  Annual evalua ons  
Annual report.  

5



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 3  

Headquarters, Sta on 81 ................................................ (360) 279‐4700 
 
Administra ve Staff 

Fire Chief Ray Merrill .................................................. 279‐4701 
Deputy Chief Mike Buxton .......................................... 279‐4702 
Administra ve Assistant Angela Braunstein ............... 279‐4703 

 
Maintenance Division 

Captain Mike Engle ..................................................... 279‐4705 
 
Training Division 

Captain Craig Anderson .............................................. 279‐4706 
 
Suppression Division ................................................................ 279‐4707 

Captain Don Baer, E Shi  
Captain Paul Schroer, F Shi  
Captain Mike Engle, G Shi  

Oak Harbor Fire Department 
Directory 

Vision, Goals & Objectives .......................... 4 

Area Served ................................................ 7 

Message from the Chief ............................... 8 

Department organization .......................... 11 

Personnel (Years of  Service) ...................... 12 

Finance .................................................... 14 

Suppression Division ................................ 18 

Prevention Division .................................. 26 

Training Division ...................................... 30 

Maintenance Division ............................... 34 

OH Firefighters Association ...................... 38 

Social Media ............................................. 40 

Emergency Management  .......................... 42 

Year in Review .......................................... 44 

Looking forward to 2016 ........................... 50 

2015 Annual Report 

6



4 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

MAYOR	
Sco  Dudley 

 

MAYOR	PRO	TEM	
Danny Paggao, Posi on 7 

 

COUNCIL	MEMBERS	
Rick Almberg, Posi on 3 

James M. Campbell, Posi on 6 

Beth Munns, Posi on 2 

Robert (Bob) Severns, Posi on 4 

Tara Hizon, Posi on 1 

Joel Serva us, Posi on 5 

City	Goals	

Goal 1:  Promote a healthy and 
growing business 
community 

Goal 2:  Improve the appearance 
and livability of the  
community 

Goal 3:  Encourage a safe 
community 

Goal 4:  Build and enhance 
community partnerships 

Goal 5:  Deliver superior quality 
service to our customers 

Goal 6:  Protect and enhance 
capital investment in the 
City 

Goal 7:  Promote a healthy work 
environment and 
employee excellence 

Goal 8:  Annual review of the 
City’s overall 
performance 

City	of	Oak	Harbor	
Vision	Statement	

The staff of the City of Oak Harbor 
is commi ed to delivering the 
highest possible level of service to 
its ci zens, improving economic 
opportunity, quality of life and 
fostering community partnerships 

City	Mission	
Statement	

Oak Harbor… Whidbey Island’s 
Premier Waterfront Community 

City of Oak Harbor 

Celebrating 100 years of incorporation 1915 to 2015 
7



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 5  

 To respond to fire, rescue, 
medical, and hazardous 
incidents on land or water; 

 To conduct fire and life safety 
inspec ons of exis ng 
businesses, mul ‐family 
dwellings, and public assembly 
facili es; 

 To review plans and conduct 
on‐site inspec ons of new 
developments and buildings to 
ensure fire and life safety code 
compliance; 

 To provide public educa on in 
the areas of fire preven on, 
CPR, first aid, life safety, 
accident preven on, and 
disaster planning 
preparedness; 

 To provide disaster equipment 
such as generators, ligh ng, 
mobile command units, and 
mul ple casualty units during 
natural and manmade 
disasters; 

 To provide training and 
technical support to fire and 
city personnel; 

 To provide classroom facili es 

VISION	STATEMENT	
To con nue to be recognized as 
consistently providing quality ser‐
vices in an efficient manner to our 
growing community. 
 

MISSION	STATEMENT 
To provide professional and cost 
effec ve services by maintaining 
highly trained and highly mo vat‐
ed career and paid‐on‐call staff, 
combined with sufficient appa‐
ratus, equipment and facili es. 

and assist with the instruc on 
of the Juvenile Fire‐Se er 
Interven on Program; 

 To provide career 
opportuni es with a Firefighter 
Pilot Program for high school 
students; 

 To provide training facili es 
and assist with the Island 
County Recruit Academy; 

 To conduct inves ga ons of all 
fires to determine their cause 
and origin; 

 To maintain the mutual aid 
agreement with all emergency 
service providers on Whidbey 
Island; 

 To maintain and operate an 
Emergency Opera ons Center 
for the City and as back‐up for 
Island County; 

 To conduct and par cipate in 
county‐wide training at the 
department’s training facility; 
and 

 To provide mee ng facili es 
for non‐profit organiza ons.  

OBJECTIVES	of	your	Oak	Harbor	Fire	Department:	

Fire Department 

8



6 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Oak Harbor Fire Department is 
commi ed to crea ng a healthy 
community for residents and 
visitors by delivering the highest 
quality of emergency services to 
the City of Oak Harbor. Your 40 
firefighters (10 career and 30 paid‐
on‐call) operate from one sta on 
staffed 24 hours per day.  

The department is responsible 
for fire suppression, 
emergency medical services, 
rescue services, hazardous 
emergency response, 
enforcement of fire and safety 

codes, environmental protec on, 
and fire cause/arson inves ga on.  

Emergency Management Services 
enhance the community’s overall 
level of emergency preparedness 
by providing an emergency 
opera ons plan and emergency 
opera on center. 

Our community of over 22,306 
residents in 9.714 square miles 
valued at $1.6 billion, is protected 
by one fire sta on with an annual 
departmental opera ng budget of 
$1.9 million.  Residents and 
businesses enjoy lower property 
insurance premiums due to the 
City’s Washington Survey and 
Ra ng Bureau (WSRB) / Insurance 
Services Office (ISO) ra ng of 4. 

Personnel in your fire department 
are commi ed to customer 
service, both internally and 
externally, and provide services 
with an a tude of 
professionalism. We believe that 
training is a cri cal component 
necessary to providing high quality 
services. We take pride in the 
dedica on of our personnel and 
their ability to provide the highest 
quality emergency services to the 
Oak Harbor community. 

Oak Harbor Fire Department 
Organizational Overview 

Department Overview 

We minimize injuries, 
death, and property 
loss related to fires, 

medical emergencies, 
and other disasters 

through the efficient 
delivery of effective fire 

suppression and pre-
hospital treatment. 

9



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 7  

City of Oak Harbor Stats 

Area Served in Square Miles 
9.714 

 
Miles of city streets 

68.81 
 

Population (as of 2014) 
22,306 

 
Assessed Valuation 

$1,590,666,301  
 

Fire Insurance Rating 
4 
 

2015 Emergency  
Incident Responses 

 
Average Response Time 
4 minutes, 17 seconds 

 
Incident Responses 

All Types 
1,173 

 
Fire Incidents 

66 (6%) 
 

Medical Incidents 
545 (46%) 

 
Fire Loss  

$121,000.00 
 

Injuries 
-none- 

Service Area / Statistics 

10



8 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Welcome to the Oak Harbor Fire 
Department’s 2015 annual report.  

People first: The City of Oak Har‐
bor is fortunate to have all of our 
dedicated firefighters on staff. 
Your fire department is comprised 
of 10 career firefighters (including 
myself), 1 administra ve assistant 
and currently 30 paid‐on‐call fire‐
fighters. This type of staffing is 
considered to be a combina on 
department and has saved the 
City’s General Fund hundreds of 
thousands of dollars over the 
years. All of our members are ded‐
icated, enthusias c, and passion‐
ate about their involvement with 
the department. Later in this an‐
nual report you’ll ‘meet’ those 
members. 

During 2015 three (3) recruit fire‐
fighters graduated from the 2015 
Island Recruit Academy. Those 
members spent approximately 190 
hours of classroom training and 
hands‐on skills in order to become 
a firefighter. Upon gradua on 
from the Academy they all became 
Na onally Cer fied as a Firefight‐
er; their training has not stopped 
and they con nue to learn new 

As we have seen around the coun‐
try violence in schools, malls, and 
places where people gather has 
been increasing. Our fire depart‐
ment has taken the approach of 
being prepared if this ever hap‐
pens in Oak Harbor. We now have 
a medical team that ac vely trains 
with the Police Department and 
provides medical support in the 
event there is an emergency.  The 
words Ac ve Shooter brings all 
forms of images and our goal is to 
provide the best possible medical 
care during an emergency.  

The Washington Surveying and 
Ra ng Bureau reviews fire agen‐
cies to provide a service level clas‐
sifica on and the ra ng structure 
for insurance companies. The low‐
er protec on class ra ng a depart‐
ment receives the be er insurance 
rates home owners and commer‐
cial occupancies enjoy. During our 
2013 review, we received a Class 4 
ra ng. We are a emp ng to ob‐
tain a Class 3 ra ng; missed that by 
a mere 161 points. We learned 
several things we can do to help 
lower our ra ng. Some have al‐
ready been implemented, others 
will be more costly. Departmental 

Ray Merrill 
Fire Chief 

Director of Emergency Services 
25 years of service 
Member Since 1989 

skills, tasks and obtain required 
cer fica ons.  

Four (4) members a ended the 
Washington State Emergency 
Medical Technician (EMT) training. 
This is a 180 hour course on emer‐
gency medical care. All did very 
well with the training and all be‐
came Na onally Cer fied EMTs.  

Some of our members a ended 
specialized training at the Emer‐
gency Management Ins tute, a 
division of the Na onal Fire Acade‐
my in Emmi sburg, MD. The 
courses a ended provided educa‐
on in advanced disaster prepar‐

edness, du es of government dur‐
ing disasters, and maintaining the 
safety of our ci zens.  

During 2015 our department re‐
sponded to 1,173 calls for assis‐
tance. The following pages of this 
report will detail some of those 
incidents. The department did re‐
spond to 66 fire calls including 19 
confirmed structure fires. Those 19 
structure fires resulted in 
$121,000.00 in property damages, 
however not all structures were a 
total loss which resulted in $1.7 
million in saved property.   

creating a safe and healthy community 

Fire Chief’s Report 

11



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 9  

Ray Merrill 

staffing is a key issue, in order to 
help lower our deficiency points 
the department must hire addi‐
onal firefighters in order to staff 

the proposed new fire sta on. 

2016 and beyond: as growth has 
taken place and the City con nues 
to grow, the  me is fast approach‐
ing that we consider a new fire 
sta on in the Southwest sec on of 
the City. There is an area of land 
by Fort Nugent Park that was set 
aside many years ago for a future 
fire sta on. We have begun the 
process of selec ng a design team, 
sharing the vision with the public, 
obtaining input, and hopefully will 
begin the actual construc on of a 
facility.  This will require a voter 
approved bond for the construc‐
on phase. The last  me the fire 

department asked for a bond was 
25 years ago, in 1992, when we 
funded our current fire sta on; 
that bond was re red 7 years ago. 

Along with the construc on of the 
fire sta on we will look for crea‐
ve ways to fully staff the sta on. 

This too plays a key role in our 
Surveying and Ra ng Bureau pro‐
tec on classifica on, as well as 
providing the best possible level of 
service to our community.  In 2016 
we will begin public forums and 
informa onal mee ngs to obtain 
public input and direc on. 

In closing, I would be remise in not 
thanking all of the members of this 
great fire department. They all do 
an outstanding job and are here 
when needed. We have a great 
team – who are here to serve, 
here to protect, and here to keep 
safe the ci zens and visitors of 
Oak Harbor.  

Every organiza on has a go to per‐
son for computer skills, answering 
ques ons, and being available for 
every task assigned – at Oak Har‐
bor Fire Department that would 
be Angela Braunstein. Her skills 
and talents are visible throughout 
this report. Members of the de‐
partment submi ed informa on, 
she complies it, arranges it, and 
makes it look great. So thank you 
Angie.  

Please feel free to contact me at 
360‐279‐4701, rmerrill@ 
oakharbor.org, or stop by the fire 
sta on should you have any ques‐
ons, concerns, or input. We are 

here to serve the public. 
 
 
 

Ray Merrill, 
Fire Chief 

Fire Chief Ray Merrill (right) and Deputy Chief Mike Buxton (left). 
(OHFD photo, L. Titherington, January 2015) 

12



10 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Organization 

 

taking care of our community 

Our community remains 
safe, healthy, and economically 

viable because we hire well- 
qualified candidates, put them 

through our rigorous training program, 
maintain high performance 

standards, and have all members 
engage in continuous training 
and development to maintain 

and upgrade their skills. 

13



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 11  

physical and moral courage to always do right 

Organizational Chart 

14



12 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

our most important asset here to serve and protect 

Years of Service 

LESS THAN 5 YEARS OF SERVICE 
50 %  

 

5‐9  
YEARS 
OF SERVICE 
16% 

Career Firefighters 5‐9 YEARS OF SERVICE 
30%  

 

10‐14 YEARS OF SERVICE 
10%  

 

15‐19  
YEARS OF SERVICE 
10% 

** (former POC firefighters not included in percentage) 

 

All OHFD full‐ me 
firefighters have 
more than five (5) 
years  of service 
to the City of Oak 

Harbor. 

NEL 

cy 

Ten full‐ me firefighters and one 
full‐ me administra ve assistant 
maintain regular schedules of at 
least 40 hours per week, receive 
full City employee benefits, and fill 
civil service posi ons. The median 
wage for full‐ me firefighters is 
$35.14 per hour + benefits. Full‐
me firefighters (with the excep‐
on of non‐exempt chiefs) are 

represented by IAFF Local 4504. 

The remaining 30 members are in 
Paid‐On‐Call Firefighter (POCFF) 
posi ons; an evolu on of volun‐
teer firefigh ng, designed for 
those with full‐ me careers else‐
where. Currently, just 71% of the 
allo ed 42 POCFF posi ons are 
filled – it’s difficult to find people 

willing and able to put in the  me 
and effort required to become 
qualified to par cipate as a POCFF. 
The median POCFF wage is 
$12.31/hour, with minimal bene‐
fits. These are not civil service po‐
si ons and are not union repre‐
sented. While full‐ me firefighters 
have set schedules, POCFFs main‐
tain very fluid schedules without 

Oak Harbor Fire Department is a 
combina on department staffed 
by full‐ me and paid‐on‐call fire‐
fighters. Of 41 OHFD members, 
just 11 are in full‐ me posi ons. 
This staffing model provides great 
savings to the City, but is becom‐
ing increasingly difficult to main‐
tain. 

(admin not included in  Firefighter %) 

15



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 13  

10‐14 
YEARS OF SERVICE 

17% 

Chris Garden 
29 years 

Dennis Wright 
 22 years 

Rich Rodgers 
40 years 

Dwayne Jansen 
35 years 

OVER 20 
YEARS 
OF 

SERVICE 
13% 

15‐19 
YEARS 
OF 

SERVICE 
3% 

guaranteed hours. Five 12‐hour 
shi s are available each day: one 
day shi  and four night shi s. 
Members sign up for shi s they 
will cover each month (one shi  is 
required). In addi on to shi s, 
POCFFs are paid their hourly rate 
for off‐duty incident response and 
training drills. POCFFs not in PERS 
eligible posi ons must keep their 
total hours to less than 70 hours 
per month. In 2015, POCFFs aver‐
aged 60 total hours/month (49 
hours/month in shi  worked at 

Sta on 81). As contrast, full‐ me 
firefighters averaged 201 hours/
month. 

For many, being a POCFF is an en‐
try point to securing a full‐ me 
firefigh ng posi on. OHFD’s train‐
ing program has an excellent repu‐
ta on and makes POCFFs from 
Oak Harbor Fire Department very 
desirable candidates for full‐ me 
posi ons. This is part of the reason 
50% of the POCFFs have less than 
5 years of service; they start here, 
become fully qualified [to the 

same qualifica ons as full‐ me 
firefighters], gain valuable experi‐
ence, and move on to full‐ me 
posi ons with other departments. 
Few people have the ability to 
work a full‐ me job elsewhere and 
put in the required  me, energy, 
and dedica on needed to par ci‐
pate as a POCFF.  

The Washington Survey & Ra ng 
Bureau credits one firefighter for 
every three POCFFs. They have 
specified staffing as an area that 
must be improved. 

POCFFs serve an important need in 
the community and save the City a 
great deal of money. It is hard 
work, requires strict training, and 
offers li le payment in return, but 
brave men and women choose to 
par cipate for the same reason as 
full‐ me firefighters: the love of 
the job, the desire to serve, and to 
save lives. 

 

OVER 20 YEARS OF SERVICE 
50%  

 
2015 OHFD 

FIREFIGHTER AVERAGES 

Full-Time Firefighter: 
Median Wage: $35.14/hour 

201 hours worked per month 
16.5 years of service 

Paid-On-Call Firefighter: 
Median Wage: $12.31/hour 
60 hours worked per month 

8.4 years of service 

16



14 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

contributing to community economic viability  

Revenue     YEAR 2015 YEAR 2014 

Line Type   Bars Account Code Subtotals Totals Subtotals Totals 

1 Donations & Contributions 001.00.367.11.2000  $0.00  $0.00 

          

2 Fire Control Services 001.00.338.22.0000    $44,733.75 

  Prehospital Medical Alarms    $36,833.75 $44,733.75   

          

3 Fire Facility Rental: Station 81     $3,822.00 

  Island County Recruit Training 001.00.362.40.0000  $0.00 $3,822.00   

         

4 Fire Protection Services: Permit Fees 001.00.338.22.1000  $1,880.00  $2,765.00 

         

5 Incident Report Fees 001.00.342.90.0000  $30.00  $40.00 

6 Other Miscellaneous Revenue     $0.00 

  Taxable 001.00.369.91.1000  $0.00 $0.00   

  Non-Taxable 001.00.369.90.0000  $57.17 $0.00   

  Xerox/Fax - Taxable 001.00.341.69.1000  $0.00 $0.00   

   Total Revenue   $40,500.92  $51,360.75 

         

Grants        

Line Type   Bars Account Code  Totals  Totals 

1 WA DOH Prehospital Participation  001.00.334.04.9000  $1,341.00  $1,473.00 

 
 Total Grants   $1,341.00  $1,473.00 

Revenue 

An
ge
la
 B
ra
un

st
ei
n 

Ad
m
in
ist
ra

on
 A
ss
ist
an

t 
10

 y
ea
rs
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
  

M
em

be
r S

in
ce
 2
00

5 

17



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 15  

Wow! Comparable
 

cities 
spend nearly 

3x for f
ire ser

vice! 

Data on comparable cities/districts is from 2014, with the exception of Moses Lake and Whatcom 7 which is from 2010. Oak Harbor Fire’s total calls do not include all emergency incidents occurring 
in the City of Oak Harbor; in 2015 — Whidbey General Hospital responds to the majority of medical alarms within the City of Oak Harbor. 

Department Population 

Valuation 
of Area 

(in billions) 

Square 
Miles 
Fire 

Square 
Miles 
ASA 

Operating 
Budget Cost per capita 

WSRB 
/ISO 

Rating 

Total  
Calls 

FY2010 

Calls per 
1000  

population 

EMS 
Transport 

Agency 
# of  

Stations 

# Miles 
Per 

Station 

Total  
Career 
Staff 

Career Staff 
per 1000 

Population 

Calls per  
career 
staff 

Arlington (City)  18,000  $1.80  8  30  $4,997,500  $277.64  5  3,958  200  Y  3  2.7  27  1.50  146.59 
Anacortes (City)  16,800  $2.46  15.4  85  $3,509,000  $208.87  5  2,732  156  Y  3  5.2  24  1.43  113.83 
Moses Lake (City)  20,350  $2.80  19  19  $5,000,000  $245.70  4  3,389  167  Y  2  9.5  33  1.62  102.70 
Mt Vernon (City)  32,700  $2.47  15  15  $4,392,121  $134.32  4  4,626  129  Y  3  5  34  1.04  136.06 
Port Angeles (City)  19,080  $1.59  10  10  $3,958,100  $207.45  4  3,760  180  Y  1  10  22  1.15  170.91 
Whatcom 7 (Dist)  21,500  $3.68  75  77  $4,600,000  $213.95  5.5  2,184  102  Y  6  12.5  30  1.40  72.80 
Vason Island (Dist)  10,624  $1.98  36  36  $5,440,979  $512.14  6  1,453  136  Y  5  7.2  27  2.54  53.81 
Average of  Compar‐ 
able Fire Agencies  19,865   $2.40  25  39  $4,556,814  $257.15  5  3,157   153  Y  3  7  28  1.53  114 

Oak Harbor (City)  22,136  $1.60  9.741  NA  $1,959,678  $88.53  4  1,173  53  N  1  9.7  10  0.45  117 

Benchmarking 

We evaluate staffing and service levels of comparable jurisdic ons to determine the standard of care we may a empt to achieve.  
The opera ng budget, staffing levels, and facili es for Oak Harbor Fire Department are far below those of comparable departments,  
yet, our service level shines! 

The Paid-On-Call Firefighter program saves the City a lot of $$$ 

We truly need a 
second station to 
meet the needs 
of all citizens! 

$257.00

1.53

3

114

7

28

$89.00

0.45

1

117

9.7

10

Fire Service ‐ Cost per Capita

Career Staff per 1000 population

Number of Fire Stations

Calls per Career Firefighter

Station Coverage (Square Miles)

Number of Career Firefighters

C  F  D       O  H  F  D  

With th
e increas

e 

in traff
ic, 9.7 sq. 

miles fe
els la

rger 

all th
e tim

e! 

18



16 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

 
 Appropria on   Expenditures    Returned to       Percentage 

SUPPRESSION (includes ICOM) $        1,183,591.00  $     1,184,813.80  $          (1,222.80)  100.10% 

ADMINISTRATION 221,237.00  223,094.40  (1,857.40)  100.84% 

PREVENTION / INVESTIGATION 138,254.00  131,429.60  6,824.40  95.06% 

TRAINING 182,634.00  171,703.15  10,930.85  94.01% 

INTRFUND REPAIRS/MAINT (apparatus) 48,616.00  48,616.00  0.00  100.00 

FACILITIES 75,700.00  59,704.76*  15,995.24  78.87% 

INTRFUND TECHNOLOGY CONTRIBUTIONS 47,742.00  47,742.00  0.00  100.00 

INTRFUND EQUIP REPLACEMENT CONTRIBUTIONS  
(vehicle fund) 

92,574.00  92,574.00  0.00  100.00 

CAPITAL OUTLAY/IMPROVEMENTS 0.00  0.00  0.00  ‐ 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $     1,990,348.00  $   1,959,677.71  $      30,670.29  98.46% 

*On 3/3/15, City Council approved an $847,705 contract with Ameresco to upgrade all city buildings and city‐owned street lights to energy‐efficient LED ligh ng. The project was to 
be funded by a combina on of grant and bond funding. Due to the City’s need to meet a grant spending deadline, City reserve funds were u lized to fund the ligh ng upgrade not 
covered by the grant un l LOCAL bonds were applied for and received. Ligh ng upgrades to Sta on 81 totaled $87,650.03 and were charged to our facili es, repair & maintenance 
budget — causing a $90,620 line item shortage. We chose to exclude the upgrade expenses in our expenditure repor ng as it was not budgeted for, was not op onal, and including 
it would make it appear as though we were nearly $57,000 over‐budget. 

Budget Report 

Financial management 
contributes to the safety, 

health, and economic viability 
of the community by allocating 
the department’s resources in 
ways that promote effective 

and efficient emergency 
and non-emergency 

operations. 

19



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 17  

Salaries/Benefits

$1,602,117.68 
81.75%

Office & Operating
$37,823.22 
10.58%

Miscellaneous
$5,149.34 
1.44%

Travel
$14,475.15 
4.05%

Small Tools/
Minor Equipment

$2,439.64 
0.68%

Xerox Copier
$5,270.97 
1.47%

Communications
$29,725.66 
8.31%

Professional Services
$13,674.74 
3.82%

Interfund Motor Pool 
R&M

$48,616.00 
13.60%Repair & Maintenance

$26,107.76 
7.30%

Public Utility Services
$33,961.55 
9.50%

Interfund Vehicle 
Contribution
$92,574.00 
25.89%

Interfund Software 
Contribution
$32,242.00 
9.02%

Interfund Hardware 
Contribution
$15,500.00 
4.33%

The Fire Department is funded 
by the City of Oak Harbor Gen‐
eral Fund. The General Fund 
receives property taxes, sales 
taxes, and other revenues, it 
accounts for approximately 15% 
of the City’s total opera ng 
budget (20% when including 
reserve funds).  

In 2015, 11% of the City’s Gen‐
eral Fund was allocated to the 
fire department.  

In other words, 11% of  15% of 
all City funds — 2% of the City’s 
total opera ng budget; $2 mil‐
lion — are allocated to Fire Ser‐
vices. 

Salaries and benefits for our 
personnel — our greatest asset 
— use the bulk of the depart‐
ment’s allo ed budget, consum‐
ing 81.75% (large blue “Pac‐Man” 

Expenditure Budget 

below, le ). Of the remaining 
18.25%, shown in the break‐out 
chart, nearly 40% is set‐aside 
into reserve funds for planned 
large purchases—vehicles, 
equipment, and technology up‐
grades (grays). 20% is dedicated 
to repair and maintenance of 

All Other Expenses 
357,560.03 

18.25% 

→  →  →  →  

facili es, equipment and vehi‐
cles (browns), daily opera ons 
expend 18% (greens), communi‐
ca ons claim 12% (yellows), and 
10% pays public u li es — elec‐
tric, gas, water, sewer (maroon). 

7%
  3%

 
2%

 

4% 

2%
 

Category  
% of total 
expenses 

20



18 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

M
ik
e 
En
gl
e 

Ca
pt
ai
n 

G
 S
hi

 ‐‐
 S
up

pr
es
sio

n 
18

 y
ea
rs
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

M
em

be
r S

in
ce
 1
99

7 

Do
n 
Ba

er
 

Ca
pt
ai
n 

E 
Sh
i
 —

 S
up

pr
es
sio

n 
12

 y
ea
rs
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

M
em

be
r S

in
ce
 2
00

3 

Pa
ul
 S
ch
ro
er
 

Ca
pt
ai
n 

F 
Sh
i
  ‐
 S
up

pr
es
sio

n 
21

 y
ea
rs
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 

FT
 M

em
be
r S

in
ce
 2
01

4 
M
em

be
r S

in
ce
 1
99

4 

protecting the safety and health of our community 

Fire  66 
Residen al Structure  12 
Building (non residen al)  2 
Cooking Fire  13 
Chimney Fire  0 
Grass/Brush Fire  12 
Vehicle  11 
Trash/Dumpster  5 
Other  11 
 
Rupture/Explosion  2 
 
EMS/Rescue  545 
Assist EMS Crew  397 
Motor Vehicle Accident   125 
EMS Call (not MVA)  11 
Rescue  11 
Other  1 
 
Hazardous Condi on  54 
Gasoline or Oil spill  11 
Natural Gas Leak  11 
Electrical Problem  25 
Carbon Monoxide Incident  1 
Other  6 

Service Call  149 
Water Problem/leak  20 
Public Service  65 
Assist Invalid  24 
Unauthorized Burning  18 
Assist police or gov. agency  14 
Other  8 
 
Good Intent  74 
Dispatched & Cancelled  38 
Smoke Scare  19 
Other  17 
 
False Alarm (No Fire)  243 
System Ac va on, Malfunc on  71 
System Ac va on, Uninten onal  148 
System Ac va on, Malicious  9 
Other  15 
 
Severe Weather   25 
 
Other  15 
No Response/ 
  Dispatch Error  11 

Ci zen Complaint  4 
 
Total  1,173 

Emergency Incident Response for 2015 

The Suppression Division is primarily responsible for the mi ga on of emer‐
gency incidents. Other func ons include fire and life safety inspec ons and 
assistance with public educa on ac vi es. 

Emergency Response 

21



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 19  

1502
1392

1183

1339
1253

1176
1106 1112 1123 1173

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

+10%  ‐8%  ‐18%  +12%  ‐7%  ‐7%  ‐6%  +1%  +1%  +4% 

Total Incident Response: 
1,173 Incidents 

Average Response Time: 
4 minutes, 17 seconds 

Concurrent Incidents: 
126 (10.75%) 

Number of EMS Calls: 
545 (46%) 

Busiest Month: 
August with 144 calls 

Busiest Day of the Week: 
Saturday (215 Calls) 

Busiest Hour of the Day: 
17:00‐17:59 (92 calls) 

Slowest Day of the Week: 
Tuesday (150 calls) 

Slowest Hour of the Day: 
04:00—04:59 (7 calls) 

1 Year Response Trend: 
INCREASING 

4.26% more than 2014 
 

10 Year Response Trend: 
DECREASING 

22% less than 2006 
 

Average Number of Calls 
[2006‐2015]: 

1,247 

2015 Emergency Incident Response by Call Type (1,173 total calls) 

Emergency Response 

Fire 
66; 6%

Rupture/
Explosion
2; <1%

EMS/Rescue
545; 46%

Hazardous Condition
54; 5%

Service Call
149; 13%

Good Intent
74; 6%

False Call
243; 21%

Severe Weather
25; 2% Other

15; 1%

22



20 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

12
:0
0A

M
 1
:0
0A

M
 2
:0
0A

M
 3
:0
0A

M
 4
:0
0A

M
 5
:0
0A

M
 6
:0
0A

M
 7
:0
0A

M
 8
:0
0A

M
 9
:0
0A

M
10

:0
0A

M
11

:0
0A

M
12

:0
0P

M
 1
:0
0P

M
 2
:0
0P

M
 3
:0
0P

M
 4
:0
0P

M
 5
:0
0P

M
 6
:0
0P

M
 7
:0
0P

M
 8
:0
0P

M
 9
:0
0P

M
10

:0
0P

M
11

:0
0P

M

Slowest Hour 
4am‐5am 
7 incidents 

Busiest Hour 
5pm‐6pm 
92 incidents 

2015 Incidents by Day of  the Week 2015 Incidents by Hour of  the Day 

2015 Incidents by Type and by Month 

   J  F  M  A  M  J  J  A  S  O  N  D  TOTAL 
Fire  3  3  3  5  9  6  16  5  6  4  0  6               66  
Rupture/Explosion  1  0  0  1  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0                 2  
EMS/Rescue  38  44  39  38  53  37  43  64  50  50  39  50             545  
Hazardous Condi on  4  1  2  7  2  4  8  3  7  4  9  3               54  
Service Call  8  14  8  8  10  12  14  13  14  18  19  11             149  
Good Intent  4  8  8  7  7  6  3  11  6  6  4  4               74  
False Call  21  25  19  14  26  12  15  25  21  22  23  20             243  
Severe Weather  0  0  0  0  0  0  0  22  0  0  2  1               25  
Other  0  0  2  1  1  1  1  1  0  4  2  2               15  
Total Incidents  79  95  81  81  108  78  100  144  104  108  98  97          1,173   

155 158 150

177
158 160

215

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

Emergency Call Volume 

23



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 21  

Oak Harbor Fire Department is a 
combina on department. Staffed 
by a combina on of full‐ me fire‐
fighters and Paid‐On‐Call (POC) 
firefighters who work together to 
provide con nuous coverage to 
the City of Oak Harbor ‐ 24 hours 
a day, 7 days a week. 

Command 8:  24 hours a day. 
Command duty is filled by the dep‐
uty chief, full‐ me captains, and 
POC captains. 

A/B  Full‐ me Firefighter Shi s: 
Twelve‐hour shi s Tuesday 
through Sunday, 0700‐1900 hours 
(14 hour shi s on Mondays—0700
‐2100 to accommodate weekly 
training drills). Four full‐ me fire‐
fighters work a rota ng schedule:  
two firefighters on shi  for four 
consecu ve days followed by four 
consecu ve days off shi . 

E/F/G Officer Shi s: Three full‐
me captains work a rota ng cycle 

of 24‐hour shi s 
(24/24/24/24/24/96): 24 
hours on duty, 24 hours off 
duty, 24 hours on, 24 hours 
off, 24 hours on, and 96 
hours off. From 0700‐1900 
the captain is the engine 
company officer. From 1900
‐0700 the captain fills the 
Command 8 posi on and 
works with the POC engine 
company. 

Paid‐On‐Call Firefighters (POCFFs) 
are equipped with pagers and re‐
spond from home or work to Sta‐
on 81 when addi onal manpow‐

er is required. POCFFs work 10 or 
12 hour platoon shi s (not to ex‐
ceed 53 hours per week). 

POC Platoon Day Shi : Twelve‐
hour shi s, 7 days a week, 0700‐
1900 hours. Completes a day me 
four member engine company: 1 
POC platoon day shi , 2 FT FFs (A 
or B shi ), and 1 Officer (E, G, or F 
shi ). 

POC Platoon Night Shi s: Twelve‐
hour shi s (1900‐0700) 6 nights 
per week, and ten‐hour shi s 
(2100‐0700) on Mondays [to ac‐
commodate weekly training drill]. 
An engine company of four POCFFs 
perform various du es and re‐
spond to emergency incidents. 
Personnel occupy sleeping quar‐
ters at sta on 81 while on shi . 

DAYS (0700‐1900)  NIGHTS (1900‐0700)  MONTH TOTAL 

57

67

52
58

76

53

65

103

73 71 72

62

22
28 29

23
32

25

35
41

31
37

26
35

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br
ua

ry

M
ar
ch

A
pr
il

M
ay

Ju
ne Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt
em

be
r

O
ct
ob

er

N
ov
em

be
r

D
ec
em

be
r

79

95

81 81

108

78

100

144

104 108
98

97

Continuous Coverage: Call volume Day vs. Night 

You’re protected DAY and NIGHT 
Full‐ me firefighters provide coverage from 7:00 am to 7:00 pm [809 
calls; 69% call volume—yellow bars in chart above].   Paid‐On‐Call 
firefighters provide coverage from 7:00 pm and through the night to 7:00 
am [364 calls; 31% call volume — blue bars in chart above].  Being a 
combina on department allows for great savings. Comparable ci es with 
all career fire fighters, spend three  mes more that the residents of Oak 
Harbor for fire protec ve services.  

24/7 Protection 

How do you staff the station? 

Firefighters at live training burn  
(OHFD Photo, L. Titherington, May 2015) 

U lizing paid‐on‐call firefighters,  
residents save $3.5 million EVERY YEAR.  

24



22 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Mutual Aid Agreements 

Oak Harbor Fire Department 
provides better service to, and 
reduces risk for, the citizens of 
Oak Harbor by maintaining mu‐
tual and automatic aid agree‐
ments with neighboring emer‐
gency service agencies. We 
lend and receive assistance 
across jurisdictional boundaries 
when the need arises.  

In the event of a large
‐scale manmade 
or natural dis‐
aster it is ex‐
pected that 
all agencies 
will work to‐
gether to 
prevent loss 
of life and 
property and get 
things back to nor‐
mal. But did you know 
that we work closely with other 
emergency agencies on Whid‐
bey Island all the time? 

One example: Island County 
Fire Districts do not have an 
aerial ladder truck. The City of 
Oak Harbor has agreed to send 
its 100‐foot aerial ladder truck 
to any 2‐story structure fire on 
central and north Whidbey Is‐
land.  It is an automatic aid 
agreement; when I‐COM (our 
dispatch center) receives a call 

to a structure fire in Coupeville; 
they automatically tone out 
Ladder 81 from Oak Harbor Fire 
Department. If there is a large 
structure fire in Oak Harbor, I‐
COM automatically tones out 
engines and crews from North 
Whidbey Fire & Rescue along 
with Oak Harbor Fire’s appa‐
ratus and personnel. It’s part of 

the response plan and helps 
rapidly deploy needed 

resources. A mutual 
aid agreement is 
utilized when an 
agency realizes it 
needs assistance 
and asks another 
agency to re‐
spond (it’s not au‐

tomatic).  

After 9/11/01, FEMA es‐
tablished a comprehensive 

National Incident Management 
System (NIMS) and encouraged 
agencies to create mutual aid 
agreements. Emergency re‐
sponders across the Nation use 
NIMS, it’s also used in school 
systems, hospitals and private 
organizations. NIMS allows 
emergency responders to work 
together to mitigate any emer‐
gency even when they don’t 
normally work together. It pro‐
vides a common framework 

  CWFR  NASWI  NWFR  OHPD  Totals 
Mutual Aid Given  5  5  12  2  24 
Mutual Aid Received  0  13  9  0  22 
Automa c Aid Given  4  0  50  0  54 
Automa c Aid Rec’d  0  0  61  0  61 

Totals  9  18  132  2  161 

that all agencies are familiar 
and comfortable with.  

In 2015, we received slightly 
more aid than we gave. Auto‐
matic aid is not only an eco‐
nomical solution but also a 
moral obligation to our citi‐
zens and our firefighters and 
meets our ultimate goal of 
saving lives and protecting 
property as quickly and effi‐
ciently as possible.  

5
4

5 13

12

50

9

61

2

Mutual Aid Given Automatic Aid
Given

Mutual Aid
Received

Automatic Aid
Received

CWFR NASWI NWFR OHPD

78 Assists Given  83 Assists Received 

We provide 
better service 
and reduce 

risk by 
maintaining 
mutual aid 

agreements. 

25



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 23  

Top: FF Robert Mirabal and Cpt Jeff Heiserman, training drill at OH Marina. Right: FFs Josh 
Jansen and Cameron Hopkins laugh it up. Above: Captain Paul Schroer with Firefighters from 

NWFR & NASWI. Opposite page: FFs practice CPR at training drill.  
(OHFD photos, L. Titherington, 2015 

26



24 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

The City of Oak Harbor is divided 

into four quadrants. Whidbey 

Avenue separates north/south; 

Oak Harbor Street separates east/

west. 

Oak Harbor’s only fire sta on is 

located on Whidbey Avenue in the 

southeast quadrant, largely  a 

commercial area. Being close by, 

this quadrant shows the fasted 

response  me. 

The SW quadrant, is farthest from 

the fire sta on and shows the 2nd 

greatest response  me. It is 

primarily a residen al area and has 

the greatest poten al for future 

residen al and commercial 

growth. It is the logical place to 

build a second fire sta on. An area 

of land has been set aside for this 

purpose at Fort Nugent Park.   

 

* Incidents not included in this chart 
are 58 calls cancelled enroute (no 
arrival) and calls to areas outside of 
our jurisdic on. These included  two 
fire calls, the average response of 
these “other” calls was 00:15:46.  

Emergency Response within the City of  Oak Harbor by  Quadrant 

2015 

NW 
Average Response Time: 

00:05:15 
Number of Incidents: 

151 
Fire Calls:  12 

SW 
Average Response Time: 

00:05:03 
Number of Incidents: 

368 
Fire Calls:  19 

PUBLIC WORKS 

CITY HALL 

NE 
Average Response Time: 

00:03:57 
Number of Incidents: 

318 
Fire Calls:  19 

SE 
Average Response Time: 

00:03:22 
Number of Incidents: 

278 
Fire Calls:  14 

STATION 81 

PROPOSED  
SECOND FIRE 
STATION 

Response by Quadrant 

27



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 25  

  2015 2014 2013 2012 
Fire 00:04:03 00:03:52 00:04:06 00:04:19 

Rupture/Explosion 00:03:45  None 00:05:14 00:05:26 

EMS/Rescue 00:04:10 00:04:12 00:04:15 00:04:10 

Hazardous Condition 00:04:00 00:04:11 00:04:33 00:05:32 

Service Call 00:05:38 00:04:43 00:05:02 00:05:55 

Good Intent 00:03:44 00:04:48 00:04:04 00:05:02 

False Call 00:04:09 00:03:29 00:03:41 00:04:19 

Severe Weather 00:04:10 00:03:55  None None 

Other 00:04:54 00:03:51 00:02:04 00:03:01 
Average for Year 00:04:17 00:04:08 00:04:07 00:04:43 

Response Time for OHFD (does not include dispatch time) 

On November 28th an Oak Harbor resident fell through his yard and 40 feet into an abandoned 
well. Oak Harbor Firefighters used a pulley system to hoist him out of hole. 

(OHFD Photos, November 2015) 

28



26 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

influencing safe community infrastructure design 

Mike Buxton 
Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal 

23 years of service 
Member Since 1992 

Fire Inspec ons 
Fire and Life Safety Inspec‐
ons are performed 

annually by the Oak 
Harbor Fire Depart‐
ment and serve many 
purposes. They iden‐
fy and correct fire 

and life safety haz‐
ards, provide the fire 
department with an oppor‐
tunity to educate the public on 
best prac ces for fire and life safe‐
ty, and enable engine companies 
to become be er informed on 
each building’s layout and fire 
protec on features.  Business 
owners have asked, “Why do 
you bring a fire engine just to 
do a fire inspec on?”  The on
‐duty crews are tasked with 
performing fire inspec ons 
along with their emergency re‐
sponse du es. When their pager 
calls them to an emergency situa‐
on, the inspec on becomes sec‐

ondary. 

“So what are we looking for?” 
There are many occupancy classifi‐
ca ons within the city, an assem‐
bly “A” occupancy classifica on is 
one where people congregate. 

This could be a restaurant where 
we check their cooking line 

suppression system for 
proper maintenance, 
also housekeeping and 
storage prac ces that 
may obscure exit 
routes for employees 
and customers. Another 

“A” type occupancy 
would be a church where a 

poten ally large occupancy load 
may exist. Means of egress and 
access to exits are a priority along 

with ensuring that fire pro‐
tec on, such as fire 
sprinkler and fire 
alarm systems, are 
maintained.     

Some common fire 
code deficiencies cited 

are extension cords be‐
ing used in lieu of permanent 

wiring, obstruc ons to exits, 
aisles, corridors and stairways, exit 
signs needing repair, delayed an‐
nual service for fire alarm, sprin‐
kler systems, and fire ex nguish‐
ers.  

Obvious changes to the building 
construc on are referred to the 
building department. The Oak Har‐

bor Fire Department works in con‐
junc on with Island County Health 
Department when there are con‐
cerns noted in an ea ng establish‐
ment, whether the issue regards a 
kitchen fire or ques onable condi‐
on observed during a rou ne 

inspec on. In 2015, Oak Harbor 
Fire Department conducted 1,035 
annual fire and life safety inspec‐
ons. 

Plan Review 
The plan review process is the first 
phase of fire protec on. The pro‐
cess ensures the appropriate 
codes and standards are applied in 
the design and renova on phases 
of construc on in order to provide 
an acceptable degree of public 
safety from fire and other hazards 
and risks. The fire department and 
building department work in con‐
junc on with City planners and 
engineers to ensure proper codes, 
standards and laws are applied in 
the construc on and design of 
projects within the City and its 
urban growth areas.  Permits are 
issued a er plans are examined 
and determined to meet all fire 
code and NFPA standards.  

Fire Code Enforcement and Fire Prevention 

FIRE PERMITS 
ISSUED IN 2015:  22 

QTY  Permit Type 

11  Fire Alarm System 

2  Fire Sprinkler System 

2  Fuel Tank Removal  

1  Opera onal Permits 

4  Fireworks Stand 

2  Fireworks Display 

Community Risk Reduction 

“Why do you 
bring a fire 

engine just to 
do a fire 

inspection?” 

“What are 
you looking 

for?” 

29



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 27  

REGION 3 FIRE INVESTIGATION 
TASK FORCE 
Oak Harbor Fire Department is a 
member of the Region 3 Fire Inves‐
ga on Task Force; Region 3 co‐

vers Whatcom, Island, Skagit and 
San Juan coun es.  The role of the 
task force is to assist and support 
inves gators in each county on 
large or complex fires such as ar‐
son fires and fire fatali es. Mem‐
bers meet quarterly for training 
and coordina on in purchasing fire 
inves ga on supplies and equip‐
ment.  

In 2015,  the task force conducted 
a cer fica on test for fire inves ‐
gators. Inves gators from around 
the State came to Skagit County to 
take the cer fica on test for Cer ‐
fied Fire Inves gator (CFI).  

The Oak Harbor Fire Department 
currently has five cer fied fire In‐
ves gators. 

Fire Loss Analysis 
In 2015 the City experienced  
20 fire incidents pu ng 

$1.8 million of property at risk. 

93% of the property 
involved was SAVED 

and just $121,000 of that property 
was damaged/lost. 

Investigation Task Force 

Residential 
Structure

Buildings (non 
residential)

Cooking

Grass/Brush

Vehicle

Trash / 
Dumpster

Other

Photos this page: (top, left) Test proctor, Fire Chief Ray Merrill, giving 
instructions to test evaluators at Region 3 fire investigation task force fire 
investigator testing.  Above - fire investigators at Region 3 Certified Fire 

Investigator test. (photos by Cheryl Barth, November 2015)   
 

Right: Kitchen fire in an Oak Harbor residence — notice the melted 
microwave above stove. (OHFD investigation photo, 2015) 

2015 Oak Harbor Fires, by type 

30



28 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

The Oak Harbor Fire Department conducted 26 fire inves‐
ga ons in 2015. While the causes of some fires are obvi‐

ous, others are determined using the scien fic method 
for determining an origin and cause.  A fire inves ga on 
is a complex endeavor involving skill, technology, 
knowledge, and science.  

The Oak Harbor Fire Department Fire Inves ga on team assisted North Whidbey Fire and Rescue 
with a fatality fire in April.  The team was able to determine the cause of the fire using a 
systema c approach based on the scien fic method.  This approach uses an analy cal process 
that is necessary in a successful inves ga on.  It was determined through this process that the 
fire was caused by an overheated extension cord powering a portable space heater. 

Fire Investigations 

A renter reported the hood vent fan ignited, closer inves ga on revealed a probable una ended 
cooking fire had occurred.  Fire inves gators provide reports and inves ga on results to insurance 
companies as well as property management companies. 

A December electrical fire was ex nguished by the 
homeowner, overloaded electrical wiring overheated igni ng 
curtains. Fire crew reassured homeowners the fire was out 
while fire officer conducted a proper inves ga on for the 
homeowner. The homeowner was asleep in the bed pictured 
when the fire erupted. Mul ple electrical devices connected 
to a non‐protected, mul ‐plug adapter overheated.    (OHFD investigation photos, 2015) 

31



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 29  

Date  Loca on  Structure type  Type of fire  Cause 

Jan 13th City Beach St  Parking Lot Vehicle fire Electrical shorted out 

Jan 17th NE O’Leary St Residential Room and contents Combustibles placed against wall heater 

Feb 1st S. Oak Harbor St Parking Lot Vehicle fire Electrical shorted out 

Feb 21st SE Dock St Residential Kitchen Fire Unattended cooking 

Feb 23rd Falls Creek Loop Residential Structure fire Cigarette discarded in combustible container 

April 5th SW Judson St Residential Structure fire Combustibles placed against gas fireplace 

April 14th Bay Front Lane Residential Structure fire with fatality Overheated extension cord 

April 23rd N. Oak Harbor St Parking Lot Vehicle fire Oil leaking onto hot engine 

April 23rd SW Tahoe St Residential Structure fire Combustibles placed against gas fireplace 

May 15th Paragon Pl Apartment Kitchen Fire Plastic kitchenware stored in oven 

May 16th N. Oak Harbor Rd Residential Structure fire Overheated extension cord 

May 25th SE Fisher Ct Residential Kitchen Fire Unattended cooking 

May 27th SW 24th Avenue Residential Structure fire Gas vent pipe too close to structural framing 

June 1st SE 8th Avenue  Apartment Landscape/Brush fire Discarded Cigarette 

June 24th SW Fairhaven Residential Structure fire Radiant heat reflected of sunglasses onto deck 

June 25th NE 16th Avenue Apartment Structure fire Electrical shorted out 

July 6th NW Crosby Residential Kitchen Fire Unattended cooking 

Aug 2nd N Oak Harbor St Fence Line Grass Fire Undetermined 

Aug 2nd N. Oak Harbor St Apartment Structure fire Occupant attempted suicide by fire 

Aug 17th NW 2nd Avenue Residential driveway Vehicle fire Electrical malfunction 

Aug 18th NW Crosby Residential Structure fire Cigarette discarded in combustible container 

Sep 8th Alder Lane Residential Garage fire Intentionally set using flammable liquid 

Sep 18th NE Kettle St Apartment Kitchen Fire Unattended cooking 

Oct 7th SE Pioneer Way Apartment Kitchen Fire Unattended cooking 

Dec 9th NW 3rd Avenue Residential driveway Vehicle fire Undetermined 

Dec 17th NW 3rd Avenue Apartment Structure fire Overloaded extension cord 

2015 City of  Oak Harbor Fire Investigations — 26 Fire Investigations Performed 

Fire Investigations 

32



30 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

the essence of transformation 

Craig Anderson 
Captain 

24 years of service 
FT Member Since 1995 
Member since 1991 

emergency services increase, 
there is also an increase in the 
complexity and nature of the 
responses.  The intricacies 
involved in these emergency 
responses have required us to 
prepare for previously 
unforeseen situa ons.   What 
has not changed is the 
commitment to training by our 
personnel to be prepared to 
“keep on running” as we 
provide the highest level of 
emergency service to our 
community. 

 

Real‐world, realis c training to 
prove our competency and our 
abili es con nued to anchor 
the training conducted at the 
Oak Harbor Fire Department 
during 2015.  “Crawl, Walk, 
Run” is our ongoing saying 
during instruc on to newer 
personnel and/or new 
techniques. What mo vates 
our daily training is the 
emphasis of the a tude to 
“keep on running” in order to 
con nually stress the 
delivery of the 

highest level of service to our 
community.   

Obtaining a cer fica on 
acknowledges that our 
firefighters and officers have 
achieved a basic level of 
competency.  It’s the ongoing 
training and con nual  me and 
effort given by our personnel 
that allows them to perform at 
the highest level of expecta on 
at an emergency scene. 

As the demands of the 
community for 

Training 

Training under 
realistic conditions 

at real-world speed 
provides the best 

preparation for the 
real-world 

emergency. 
Left: Captain Craig Anderson instructs during live fire training.  

Right: Captains Baer and Heiserman training on Station 81 tower.  
 (OHFD Photos, May and September 2015) 

33



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 31  

I solemnly swear 
to perform my duties 
as a Firefighter  
for the City of Oak Harbor, 
to the best of my abilities.   
 
I will serve  
our firefighters and officers  
with respect,  
with dignity,  
with honor.  
  
I will serve 
the citizens of Oak Harbor 
with courage,  
with compassion,  
with integrity, 
regardless of the consequences.  
  
I will uphold 
the laws and constitutions  
of the United States of America, 
the State of Washington, 
and the City of Oak Harbor; 
so help me God. 

Oak Harbor Fire Department 

Firefighter Oath 

Oak Harbor Fire Investigators help investigate a fire in Navy housing; they search through the burned remains of a garage looking for the cause 
and origin of the fire, marking and collecting evidence. (OHFD Photos, September 2015) 

34



32 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Fire*
457.25; 31%

Disaster 
Preparedness
168; 11%

Technical Rescue**
161.75; 11%

Hazardous 
Materials
46; 3%

Medical
406; 27%

Apparatus 
Driver/Operator

49.75; 3%

Administration
26.5; 2%

Fire Officer 
86.75; 6% Occupational Safety 

& Health
22; 2%

Public Edcuation
59.25; 4%

cer fica on 
training enabling us to meet the 
pre‐hospital needs of the 
community.  

When you have an emergency, 
Oak Harbor Firefighters are able to 
arrive on scene quickly and safely 

Oak Harbor 
Firefighters, both 
paid‐on‐call and 
career, are 
highly trained 
and able to meet 
community needs 
in  mes of stress 
and trauma. 

The chart above breaks 
down total training hours 
for the year by ac vity type. 
Naturally, the most  me (31%) is 
spent on fire suppression training, 
as the lives of our personnel are at 
greatest risk while figh ng fires. 
Twenty‐seven percent is medical 
training, including EMT 

due to many hours of Emergency 
Vehicle Incident Preven on (EVIP) 
and Driver/Operator training.  

We isolate and mi gate 
emergencies quickly without 
undue mess and destruc on 
because we’ve trained extensively 
in all hazards and technical rescue.  

Because Inves gators have been 
trained, tested and cer fied, they 

will examine fire scenes 
and determine how and why 

a fire started.  

The incident will be handled 
safety, with care and accuracy 
following specific administra ve, 
officer, fire code, and safety 
training. 

Through our public educa on 
program, we spend  me educa ng 
the community on how to live 
safely and prepare for 
emergencies. 

Training Activity 

Our community remains 
safe and healthy 

because the Training 
Division ensures 

all fire and EMS personnel 
are knowledgeable, 

highly skilled, and 
experienced 
professionals. 

Center photo: OHFD Firefighters pose during a live structure fire training. 
(OHFD Photos, L. Titherington, 2015) 

2015 Training Hours provided to personnel, by Activity Type  
Total Hours Offered: 1,483.25  •  Personnel completed a combined total of 6,192 hours in training 

35



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 33  

OHFD	members	who	received	certi ication	(or	re‐certi ications):	

ICC: Interna onal Code Council 
IFSAC = Interna onal Fire Service Accredita on Congress 

Graduated from IFSAC Accredited 
Island Recruit Academy, IFSAC 
Firefighter 1 Cer fica on, and 
IFSAC Hazardous Materials 
Opera ons Level Cer fica on:  
Ryan Merriman, POC Firefighter  
Jim Reynolds, POC Firefighter  

Brad VonHaden, POC Firefighter 
(Completed Firefighter 1 and Haz‐
Mat Awareness) 

 
IFSAC Fire Instructor 1  
Andrew Moon, POC Firefighter  
  
ICC Fire Inspector 1 

Mike Engle, Captain 
 
ICC Fire Inspector 1 (Re‐Cert) 
Craig Anderson, Captain 
Don Baer, Captain 

Na onal Registry Emergency 
Medical Technician 
Ryan Merriman, POC Firefighter 
 
Emergency Medical Technician 
(EMT)  
Kevin Frondozo, POC Firefighter  
Zack Gifford, POC Firefighter  
Andy Kiesel, POC Firefighter  
 
Emergency Medical Technician 
(EMT) Re‐Cer fica on 

Ray Merrill, Fire Chief 
Tom Cross, POC Captain 
Chris Garden, POC Captain 
Jeff Heiserman, POC Captain 
Paul Schroer, Captain 
Andrew Carroll, POC Firefighter  
Travis Stanford, POC Firefighter 
 
Basic Public Informa on Officer 
Laura Titherington, 
Photographer / PIO 
 

Certifications 

Top: FFs on roof during training drill, June, 2015. Center: Oak Harbor Fire Department 
Recruit Firefighter Class of 2015 at a live structure fire training burn: Ryan Merriman (left), 

James Reynolds (center), and Brad VonHaden (right), May 2015. Bottom: OHFD Badge 
Pinning Ceremony, May 2015 (OHFD Photo, L. Titherington, 2015) 

36



34 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Facilities Apparatus Equipment 

It is not the most exciting topic, 
but it is essential. As the front line 
responder, our mission is to pro‐
vide the best service possible to 
our city and citizens. It is the mis‐
sion in maintenance to provide the 
best possible equipment. 

The National Fire Protection Asso‐
ciation (NFPA) puts forth guide‐
lines to constantly make respond‐
ing to emergencies as safe for fire‐
fighters as possible. Unfortunately 
these guidelines are created be‐
cause someone either got hurt or 
killed trying to do their job. As a 
result, all of our essential equip‐
ment is tested at least annually. 

This includes all supply and dis‐
charge hose, self‐contained 
breathing apparatus, ground lad‐
ders, and fire engine pumps. The 
ladder truck receives an annual 
third party inspection relative to 
safety and purpose. There are 
quarterly air samples tested from 
our breathing air compressor to 
ensure safe breathing air. Fire‐
fighting bunker gear is inspected 
and sent for cleaning and repair as 
needed.  

Everyone is responsible for in‐
specting apparatus and equipment 
and reporting inoperative or inad‐
equate equipment. A good pro‐

gram is in place and personnel 
always look for ways to increase 
knowledge and improve the stand‐
ard of readiness. 

The maintenance division works 
closely with City mechanics who 
attend fire mechanic conferences 
and have a thorough understand‐
ing of our efforts to stay prepared 
to respond. They are meticulous 
and professional in what they do. 

It isn’t a frontline, glamorous job 
but there is pride and satisfaction 
in supplying our firefighters and 
officers with well‐maintained 
equipment so they can provide the 
best service possible to our city 
and citizens.  

FIRE HOSE TESTED IN 2015: 

 1.75” a ack hose—75 pieces 
at 50 feet each. This includes 
the Marina hose. 

 2.5” a ack hose: 105 pieces of 
50 feet each. 

 5” supply hose—67 pieces 

GROUND LADDERS TESTED: 

 Extension ladders: 2 at 35’, 5 
at 30’, 

 Roof ladders: 6 at 14’, 1 at 20’ 

 Captains ladders: 6 at 10’ 

APPARATUS is scheduled for annu‐
al preventive maintenance at City 
shops and maintained regularly at 
the Fire Department through daily 
apparatus checks and inspections 

 4 fire engines, includes annual 
pump test on each 

 1 aerial ladder truck; annual 
third party inspec on and 
tes ng 

 1 Ford 550 rescue truck 

 2 command Chevy Tahoe 
SUVs 

 1 training/u lity pickup truck 

 1 air trailer for filling breath‐
ing air bo les 

 1 fire inves ga on trailer 

 1 technical rescue trailer 

 1 spill containment/hazmat 
trailer 

 2 special opera ons trailers 
for mass casualty incidents 

 1 u lity trailer 

 1 forkli  

 1 30KW diesel generator 

 1 diesel tractor truck 

 1 diesel flatbed truck 

 1 40’ flatbed trailer 

 1 400‐gallon potable water 
trailer 

Facility & Fleet 

37



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 35  

PERSONAL PROTECTIVE GEAR 
AND EQUIPMENT: 

 30 self‐contained breathing 
apparatus (SCBAs) receive 
annual flow tes ng and as 
needed repairs 

 Air bo les inspected and re‐
paired as needed 

 45 sets of assigned PPE re‐
ceive semi‐annual inspec on 
and as needed cleaning and 
repairs (repair/cleaning by 
qualified contractors) 

 Approximately 45 SCBA masks 
are fit tested to assigned per‐
sonnel annually as per NFPA 
requirements 

 Boots, gloves, helmets; flash 
hoods are all replaced as 
needed 

 Equipment such as flashlights, 
hand tools… axes, shovels, 
Halligan bars, EK‐hooks, pike 
poles are cleaned and re‐
paired as needed 

 Portable, mobile and base 
radios receive repairs as need‐
ed 

 Firefigh ng nozzles, applianc‐
es and large GPM nozzles are 
inspected regularly and re‐
paired as needed 

 Approximately 55 fire pagers 
are programmed and repaired 
as needed 

 All medical equipment is 
checked daily and replaced as 

necessary to include oxygen, 
pharmaceu cals, suc on 
units, and AED’s 

 Each emergency response unit 
is equipped with laptop com‐
puters  for address, prefire 
plans, hazmat reference, and 
dispatch informa on. Each 
computer requires updates 
and repairs as necessary 

 Air monitoring equipment 
receives calibra on and re‐
pairs as needed 

 5 thermal imaging cameras 
are maintained in ready status 

 Technical rescue equipment 
(ropes, stokes baskets, and 
hardware) are inspected and 
maintained 

 Various power tools including 
corded and cordless are in‐
spected regularly 

 Hazmat absorbent materials 

 Salvage tarp repairs 

GAS POWERED EQUIPMENT is 
essential to our mission and is in‐
spected and annually serviced, 
these include: 

 10 S hl chain saws 

 4 posi ve pressure fans 

 4 electric fans 

 4 S hl circular saws 

 11 portable gas generators 

 2 power heads for Jaws 

 Various air‐powered extrica‐
on tools 

BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT: 

 Hush breathing air compres‐
sor requires annual filter 
changes, quarterly air samples 
and necessary repairs 

 Sprinkler confidence tests 

 Alarm confidence tests 

 HVAC quarterly maintenance 

 Irriga on maintenance 

 Annual truck bay door preven‐
ve maintenance 

 Required annual fire ex n‐
guisher preven ve mainte‐
nance 

 Annual calibra on of test 
gauges 

 Load tes ng on backup gener‐
ator and high wa age genera‐
tors trailers 

 Monthly generator checks on 
sta on 81 and ICOM 

 Inventory and purchase of 
medical supplies 

 Annual calibra on of SCBA 
mask fit test machine 

Building maintenance ranges from 
changing light bulbs, L&I hot water 
tank inspections, painting, cleaning 
gutters, and grounds maintenance 
to shower door repairs.  All emer‐
gency backup generators are 
topped off with fuel regularly. 
 
LED LIGHTING 

As part of the 2015 citywide pro‐
ject to conserve energy and re‐
duce spending, all ligh ng in Sta‐
on 81 was converted to LED 

ligh ng. This included replacing all 
incandescent light bulbs and some 
fixtures in the interior and exterior 
of Sta on 81. The City received 
grant funding to help fund this 
project. 

(OHFD Photos, L. Titherington, 2015) 

38



36 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Command 8:  Two 2004 Chevrolet Tahoe SUVs. Used 
by Command, usually first on scene. Carries supplies 
necessary for incident command as well as medical 
supplies, thermal imaging and photographic equip‐
ment.  

Four Engines:  Two 2007 E‐Ones (E81 & E812) and 
Two 1998 Seagraves (E813 & E814) each equipped 
with 1500gpm pumps, hose, ladders, fans, tarps, air 
bo les, tools and enough medical and other equip‐
ment to operate alone for a limited period of  me. 
In 2013, all engines (pumpers) passed the required 
NFPA 1911 annual 3‐hour pump test.  

Ladder 81 is a 1992 Seagraves aerial and carries vol‐
umes of equipment ranging from mass casualty 
medical supplies to ladders, ven la on fans, saws, 
ligh ng, salvage and rescue gear. Atop the truck is a 
100‐foot aerial ladder that is useful in reaching 

roo ops with limited access. NFPA 1914 re‐
quires and annual inspec on of 

the ladder. The inspec‐
on takes an average 
of five hours and is 
conducted by a third 
party vendor. 

Rescue 81 is a 2012 
Ford 550 that entered 

service in 2013 and is equipped 
with medical supplies, generator, 
lights, and water vacuums. It re‐
sponds to medical calls, supports 
other apparatus, and pulls special 
ops trailers.  

Spec Ops Trailers designed for spe‐
cific  response circumstances: 

Spill Containment trailer—
equipped for hazardous material 
response both in the sound and on 
the ground.  

Confined Space Rescue trailer—
equipped for rescue from  ght 
quarters or precarious perches 
where rope rescue is necessary.  

Air/Rehab trailer— houses an air 
compressor for on‐scene SCBA 
bo le refilling and equipment to 
rehab working firefighters.  

Mass Casualty Incident trailer—
contains supplies and equipment 
for assis ng in large scale incidents. 

Crime Scene / Fire Inves ga‐
on trailer—a unit shared 

with Oak Harbor 
Police De‐
partment, is 
equipped to 
assist in 
fire and 
crime scene 

inves ga on in the field. 

Support and Disaster Vehicles: Big 
Red truck, fire marshal van, training 
pickup, u lity trailer, two tractor 
trucks, 40’ flatbed trailer, diesel 
flatbed truck, fork li , a mobile 
generator, and a 400 gallon potable 
water trailer ready for response.  

Annual preven ve maintenance 
and repair work is done on all ap‐
paratus. Much of the minor repairs 
are done here at OHFD while the 
annual servicing and major repair 
work is scheduled at City Shops. 
NFPA 1915 and 1071 s pulate ac‐
curate record keeping and high 
quality assurance when emergency 
vehicles need repair. 

OHFD photos / Angela Braunstein and Laura Titherington 

BIG RED 2000 Freightliner Truck entered 
service in 2014. It was received via US 

Military Surplus for no charge. Our 
talented staff transformed it from 

Army Green to Fire Truck Red. We 
then had striping added to match 
our fleet. (OHFD Photo / Laura 

Titherington, January 2015) 

39



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 37  

(OHFD Photos, L. Titherington, 2015) 

40



38 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

taking care of our community through service 

Steve McCalmont 
Firefighter, B Shift 
Association President 
25 years of service 
FT Member since 2000 
Member Since 1990 
 

Shannon Holcomb 
POC Firefighter 
Association Vice-President 
10 years of service 
Member Since 2005 

Genevieve Cox 
POC Firefighter 
Association Sec/Treasurer 
3 years of service 
Member Since 2012 

The Oak Harbor Firefighters Associa on is a non profit 503(C) 
organiza on whose members are Oak Harbor Fire Department 
employees. It is a service organiza on providing assistance to 
firefighters and their families, department re rees, and the Oak 
Harbor community.  

Firefighters Association 

Oak Harbor Firefighters Association contributes to 
the safety, health, and economic viability of the 

community by allocating resources and support to 
Oak Harbor Fire Department’s public education and 

public service programs. This is possible through 
monthly member dues and community donations. 

Oak Harbor Fire Department 
members (both paid‐on‐call and 
full‐ me employees) pay monthly 
dues that fund Oak Harbor 
Firefighters Associa on events and 
ac vi es. 

Throughout the year we assist and 
contribute  to members facing 
difficult  mes and joyous  mes. 
We provide plaques to re ring 
members and flowers for past 
family and member funerals. 
When a child is born, we provide a 
plant or tree for the family to 
enjoy.  

We look forward to leadership 
from our associa on presidency 
serving again in 2016: Steve 
McCalmont, (President), Shannon 
Holcomb (Vice President), and 
Genevieve Cox (Secretary/
Treasurer). 

Thanks to all the Associa on 
members for a produc ve 2015. 
These are some of the events we 
par cipated in: 

 Annual Sweethearts Dinner — 
honoring our spouses near 
Valen ne’s Day. 

 Centennial Open House at 
Sta on 81 in May — provided 
door prizes and refreshments. 

 Sunrise Challenge series race 

 Second Annual Family Toppins 
Party at Sta on 81 

 Stashtober fundraiser for EOD 
Wounded Warrior Founda on 

 Home Depot Safety Fair—
distributed bike helmets to 
local children 

 Holiday Shop‐with‐a‐Hero at 
Wal‐Mart  

 Christmas present and Teddy 
Bear delivery to Oak Harbor 
neighborhoods 

 Associa on Members’ 
Christmas party 

Note: Full‐ me firefighters and captains are 
also members of (and represented by) Oak 
Harbor Firefighters LOCAL 4504 IAFF, which 
is a separate organiza on from the Oak 
Harbor Firefighters Associa on.    

41



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 39  

(OHFD Photos, L. Titherington, May 2015) 

42



40 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Social Media 

leveraging technology to improve service delivery 

Connect with us! We maintain 
a Facebook page and a Twi er 
feed to share news about Oak Har‐
bor Department, safety infor‐
ma on, breaking Oak Harbor an‐
nouncements, and health and 
safety event informa on. Social 
media is two‐way street, enabling 
us to interact with the public — if 
you have ques ons, comments or 
informa on to share, we’re availa‐
ble. 

When Oak Harbor faces a disaster 
our Public Informa on Officers will 
u lize every possible avenue to 
share informa on with the com‐
munity, including pos ng to social 
media.  

Half of the global popula on is 
under the age of 30! 

Oak Harbor’s popula on: 

 Median age is 28  

 77.6% are under age 44 

 43.2% are under age 24  

Social media is an excellent 
way to connect with and inter‐

act with our community. We 
hope you will join us! 

On Facebook find us at: 
h p://www.facebook.com/
OHFire 

On Twi er we’re are 
@OakHarborFD or  
h p://www.twi er.com/
OakHarborFD 

We currently have 368 followers 
on Twi er (a 72% increase over 
2014) and 727 on Facebook (a 54% 
increase over 2014).  

This effec ve tool enables us to 
reach many people in our commu‐
nity. 72% of adult internet users 
use Facebook; the number climbs 
to 82% for age 18‐29 (Pew Research 
Center, 2015).  

Social media has been integrated 
into our overall communica ons 
plan, however, one of our main 
objec ves is to build credibility so 
that in  mes of disaster we will 
already be a trusted source of 
emergency services informa on — 
you will know we’re available, ac‐
ve and ready with the data you 

need. 

In 2015, our most popular post— 
reaching 8.1K people—was about 
fireworks safety and use.  Other 
popular posts include a photo of 
OHFD personnel wearing green to 
support Dwarfism Awareness 
Month and Pink to support Breast 
Cancer Awareness. We posted a 
photo of a young boy who stopped 
by the sta on with his grandmoth‐
er and asked if they could show 
their support for firefighters 
ba ling the Washington wild fires 
by holding a sign and waving to 
cars as they passed by the sta on; 
the post reached 3,370 people. 

 

Our presence in social 
media contributes to a 

healthy and safe 
community and offers 

the potential to make a 
positive impact on the 
community. And builds 
trust that will be critical 

in times of disaster. 

(OHFD Photos, 2015) 

43



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 41  

HOW IS SOCIAL MEDIA USED IN EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT? 

 Just one part of a much larger communi-
cation plan 

 Keep the public updated with news and 
information 

 User feedback via messages, wall posts, 
polls, etc. 

 Available anywhere on any device 

 Monitored during events  

 Alert and warn in the midst of disaster 

 Relief and recovery efforts 

 Data Collection — what are YOU seeing 
and experiencing? 

 Provides information to help all people 
prepare for emergencies, especially help-
ful for those with disabilities and non-
English speakers. 

#SMEM 
(Social Media in Emergency Management) 

(OHFD Photos, L. Titherington, 2015) 
44



42 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

EMERGENCY  MANAGEMENT building service resiliency through emergency management 

Being prepared and knowing 
what to do can help reduce 

fear, anxiety and losses. 
Individually, we can 
prepare our homes 
and families to get 
through cri cal 
mes. Community 

based prepared‐
ness and planning 
allow us to manage 
poten al hazards 

following a disaster 
event. 

Emergency Services is the 
disaster preparedness side of 
the fire department. The fire 
chief also serves as the City’s 
Emergency Services Director 
(.90 FTE as Fire Chief and .10 
FTE as EMS Director).   

Emergency Services Financials	
 Allocations Expenditures Balance % Used 

2015 EXPENDITURES 18,600.00 14,895.00 3,705.00 80.08% 

2014 EXPENDITURES 5,700.00 3,387.46 2,312.54 59.43% 

In 2015, the City experienced 
two weather related disas‐
ters—a wind storm in August 
and November. We con nue to 
work closely with Island County 
Department of Emergency 
Management. 

2015 Accomplishments: 

 City Emergency Opera ons 
Center (EOC) u lized for 
management of Independ‐
ence Day celebra ons, and 
public events, including 
Whidbey Island Marathon 
and annual Home Depot 
Safety Fair. 

 Par cipated in NASWI Oil 
Spill Training exercise. 

 Island County Department 
of Emergency Management 
(DEM) u lized EOC.  

Community based 
preparedness and 
planning allow us 

to manage 
potential hazards 

following a 
disaster event. 

 Ac ve Shooter / High Risk 
Entry training and exercise 
conducted.  

 Prehospital Grant u lized 
to purchase addi onal en‐
try team protec ve gear.  

 Unified Command and 
large scale disaster and re‐
sponse training con nues. 

2016 Goal: 

Goal: Conduct an annual train‐
ing exercise. 

 Objec ve: prac ce and 
evaluate the effec veness 
of the CEMP and the readi‐
ness of City departments. 

Emergency Management 

Emergency Services budget was increase in 2015 to include salaries and benefits for .10 FTE Emergency Services Director. In 2014, just $1,000.00 
was allocated for these expenses, they increase to $13,925.00 in 2015. Without these expenses, the operating budget remains the same as in past 
years, approximately $4,700, of which, just $633 was spent in 2015 

45



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 43  

Island County Emergency Management information booth at the 2015 Annual Home Depot Safety Fair.  
Eric Brooks (on right in top right photo) discusses emergency preparedness information to Oak Harbor citizens and distributes educational materials. (OHFD Photos, A. Braunstein, 2015) 

46



44 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Giving back to our healthy community 

January  
 INCIDENT RE‐

SPONSE:  79 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
123.25 

 ACTIVE SHOOTER WORK‐
SHOP with Island County DEM and FEMA. 

 EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN (EMT) 
course (5‐months) began for POCFFs 
K.Frondozo, Z.Gifford, and A.Kiesel. 

 ISLAND CO RECRUIT ACADEMY, 5‐
months; began for 3 POCFF Re‐
cruits: R.Merriman, J.Reynolds, and 
B.VonHaden. 

 OHFD SAFETY COMMITTEE  

 Helped moved the PBY airplane for the 
Oak Harbor PBY Museum 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 POCFF R.Rodgers ‐ 41 yrs 

 POCFF R.Lange ‐ 6 yrs 

 POCFFs C.Ching ‐ 6 yrs 

February  
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  
95 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
136.5 

 Annual SWEETHEART’S 
DINNER honoring spouses 

of OHFD firefighters/members 

 Held a BADGE PINNING ceremony for new 
firefighters. 

 1 LATERAL POC FIREFIGHTER HIRED wel‐
come Dus n Amundson 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 POCFF D.Mar n ‐ 13 yrs 

 POCFFs S.Holcomb and 
J.Heiserman, and Admin 
Asst. A.Braunstein ‐ 10 
yrs 

March  
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  81 

 TRAINING HOURS:   

 OHFD also par cipated 
in the ST. PATRICK’S 
DAY PARADE 

 FIREFIGHTER ANDREW 
MOON received LIFE 

SAVING AWARD at City 
Council Mee ng. 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 POCFF D. Wright ‐ 22 yrs 

 POCFF A.Carroll and POC Cpt 
T.Cross ‐ 12 yrs 

April 
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  81 

 TRAINING HOURS:  183 

 Support provided for WHIDBEY ISLAND 
MARATHON & HALF MAR‐
ATHON 

 Par cipated in HOL‐
LAND HAPPENING 
PARADE 

 Donated a RIDE‐TO‐
SCHOOL to Broadview 
Elementary School 

 Coordinated a LIVE FIRE PRACTICE BURN 
with North Whidbey Fire & Rescue 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 FF S.McCalmont ‐ 25yrs total (15 yrs full 
me) 

May 
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  108 

 TRAINING HOURS:  185.75 

 2015 ISLAND COUNTY 
RECRUIT ACADEMY GRADU‐
ATION held at Sta on 81. 

 CENTENNIAL CELEBRA‐
TION OPEN HOUSE  at 
Sta on 81: well a end‐
ed. 

 S.A.D.D. DUI Presenta‐
on at Oak Harbor High 

School 

 Par cipated in Olympic View Elementary 
School’s CAREER DAY 

 A ended WALK OF HONOR 
DEDICATION on Pioneer 
Way 

YEARS OF SERVICE: 

 POCFF R. Mirabal ‐ 10 
yrs 

 POCFF V. Orellano ‐ 2 yr 

June  
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  78 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
83.75 

 ISLAND CO RECRUIT 
ACADEMY GRADUA‐
TION— FIREFIGHTER I 
CERTIFICATION, three (3) 
POCFF Recruits: R.Merriman, 
J.Reynolds, and B.VonHaden. 

 WA STATE DEPT OF HEALTH (DOH) PRE‐
HOSPITAL PARTICIPATION GRANT $1,341 
awarded OHFD to help meet DOH require‐
ments to provide prehospital services to 
the public 

 EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN (EMT) 
CERTIFICATION: K.Frondozo, Z.Gifford, 
A.Kiesel, R.Merriman. 

 ANNUAL PUMP TESTING AT OHFD 
TRAINING TOWER: Navy Region 
NW Fire & Emergency Services 
(NASWI), Central Whidbey Island 
Fire & Rescue, North Whidbey 
Fire & Rescue, and OHFD 

 Held a BADGE PINNING ceremony 
for newly named CAPTAINS 

 2 LATERAL POC FIREFIGHTER HIRED wel‐
come James Anema and Jonathan Pollock 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 CPT D.Baer ‐ 12 yrs 

July  
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  

100 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
82.5 

 ENTRY LEVEL POC FIRE‐
FIGHTER RECRUITMENT 
began 

 OHFD personnel par cipated in the INDE‐
PENDENCE DAY PARADE, crews were 
posi oned by the fireworks display site 
and addi onal crews covered the City 
during July 4th fes vi es 

 Joint OHFD / OHPD INDEPENDENCE DAY 
BBQ held at OHFD a er parade 

 U lized INCIDENT COMMAND TRAILER 
during INDEPENDENCE DAY Firework 
display at Windjammer Park, Oak Harbor 

 Island County BURN BAN begins, due to 
weather 

 POCFF  Brian Kidder resigned 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 CPT C.Anderson ‐ 24 yrs total (20 yrs full 
me) 

August 
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  144 

 TRAINING HOURS:  60.5 

 NATIONAL NIGHT OUT, public 
educa on props provided for chil‐
dren, burn cell demonstra on, 
literature provided with emergen‐
cy resources, and an appearance 
by Smokey Bear 

 Oak Harbor Firefighter Associa on 
held the 2nd Annual Frozen Yogurt 

Summer Social 

 OHFD par cipated in the 2015 PIG FEST 

Year In Review 

47



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 45  

 Presented Fire Safety 
Informa on at Sno‐Isle 
Library, Oak Harbor 
branch, END OF SUMMER 
READING program. 

 2nd Anniversary of 
OHFD’s use of SOCIAL ME‐

DIA. Find us at: www.facebook/
OHFire and @OakHarborFD on Twi er 

 In addi on, OHFD provided an EMS 
sta on at the North Whidbey Island 
Sunrise Rotary Club ANNUAL CHAL‐
LENGE SERIES RACE and provided gener‐
ators at the NORTH WHIDBEY LIONS 
CLUB ANNUAL CAR SHOW 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 POC Cpt C.Garden ‐29 yrs 
 CPT M.Engle ‐ 18 yrs 

September 
 INCIDENT RE‐

SPONSE:  104 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
99.75 

 CITY OF OAK HAR‐
BOR MILITARY APPRE‐
CIATION PICNIC at Windjammer Park.  

 LATERAL AND ENTRY LEVEL PAID ON 
CALL FIRE‐FIGHTER tes ng: 13 candi‐
dates tested, 1 hired. 

 Placed MEMORIAL FLAGS  for 
9/11/01 at Burley’s Funeral  
Chapel 

 A ended 9/11 MEMO‐
RIAL SERVICE at NAS‐
Whidbey Island  

 Island County BURN 
BAN due to dry weather 

ends. Permanent burn ban con n‐
ues in City of Oak Harbor and it’s urban 
growth areas 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 POCFF D.Jansen ‐ 35 yrs 

 Chief R. Merrill ‐ 25 yrs 

 CPT P.Schroer ‐ 21 yrs 

 FF E.Klaszky ‐ 6 yrs 

October 
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  

108 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
150 

 ANNUAL WELLNESS RE‐
QUIREMENT for full  me suppression 
personnel 

 NATIONAL FIRE PREVENTION WEEK: 
“Hear the BEEP where you SLEEP” 

 OHFD also par cipated in 
HOME DEPOT’S ANNUAL 
SAFETY FAIR  

 A ended the presen‐
ta on  of 9/11 WORLD 
TRADE CENTER STEEL to 
Carpet One Floor & Home 

 Oak Harbor Firefighters 
par cipate in STASHTOBER 
2015 and earn dona‐
ons for the EOD 

Wounded Warrior 
Founda on 

 Wore PINK OHFD T‐
SHIRTS to support 
Breast Cancer Aware‐
ness 

 Wore GREEN OHFD T‐SHIRTS to support 
Dwarfism Awareness 

 Engine 81 at Oak Harbor’s Downtown 
TRICK‐OR‐TREAT EVENT. 

 POCFFs Grant Bull, Zackery Gifford, Val‐
en n Orellano, and Jon Pollock resigned 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 Deputy Chief M.Buxton ‐ 23 yrs 

November 
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  98 

 TRAINING HOURS:  143.5 

 CHANGE YOUR CLOCK, 
CHANGE YOUR BATTERY 
NATIONAL CAMPAIGN, remind‐
er to change smoke detector ba eries 

 Par cipated in the VETERANS DAY 
PARADE  

 Par cipated in REGION 3 FIRE INVESTI‐
GATOR TESTING in Skagit County 

 Par cipated in the ANNUAL NORTH 
WHIDBEY COMMUNITY HARVEST 
THANKSGIVING DINNER at the Elk’s 
lodge 

December 
 INCIDENT RESPONSE:  

97 

 TRAINING HOURS:  
70.25 

 1 LATERAL POC FIRE‐
FIGHTERS HIRED wel‐

come Mark Soika 

 Supported the SHOP‐
WITH‐A‐HERO annual 
event at Wal‐Mart. 

 CHAUFFEURED SANTA 
to Oak Harbor neighbor‐
hoods for gi  deliveries. 

 26TH ANNUAL OHFD FAMI‐
LY CHRISTMAS PARTY held at Sta on 81, 
honored firefighters and their 
families — Ugly Christmas 
Sweater Contest. 

YEARS OF SERVICE 

 POC FF J.Roberts — 19 
yrs 

 FF C.Hopkins — 5 yrs total 
(3 yrs full me) 

 FF O.Haffner — 5 yrs total (2 yr full me) 

 POCFFs J.Hammond, Ja.Jansen, and 
T.Walstad — 5 yrs 

 POCFFs G.Cox, J.Fikse, A.Moon, and 
T.Stanford — 3 yrs 

 POCFFs M.Fletcher, K.Frondozo, 
J.Jansen, A.Kiesel, E.Macapinlac and 
G.Nagel — 2 yr 

 POCFFs R.Merriman, J.Reynolds, and 
B.VonHaden—1 yr 

 

The Firefighter’s Prayer 
When I am called to duty, God, 

whenever flames may rage; 
Give me strength 
to save some life, 

whatever be its age. 
Help me embrace 

a li le child before it is too late 
or save an older person 

from the horror of that fate. 
Enable me to be alert 

and hear the weakest shout, 
and quickly and efficiently 

to put the fire out. 
I want to fill my calling 

and to give the best in me, 
to guard my every neighbor  

and protect his property. 
And if, according to my fate, 

I am to lose my life; 
please bless 

with your protec ng hand 
my children and my wife. 

— Author Unknown 

 

Year In Review 

48



46 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Training Photos 

49



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 47  

Public Education Photos 

50



48 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

HazMat Training 

51



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 49  

Training Photos 

52



50 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Preparing for the future Planning for success 

Goal:   Complete a revised and accurate 
organiza onal chart of the fire department.  

Objec ve:   To develop and maintain the 
hierarchy of the fire department.  

Objec ve:  To maintain the vital posi ons and 
show the repor ng structure of 
the department.  

Goal:  Design, fund, construct, and staff a new fire 
department facility in the southwest quadrant 
of the City.  

Objec ve:   Build a fire sta on to be er serve 
the residents in the southwest 
quadrant of the City.  

Objec ve:   Provide for addi onal staffing at 
the exis ng sta on and to provide 
for around the clock coverage at 
the new fire sta on.  

Objec ve:   Be prepared for the an cipated 
growth in the southwest quadrant.  

Goal:  Purchase a 75‐foot ‘Quint style’ fire 
apparatus.  

Objec ve:   To specify, and purchase a 75 foot 
quint ladder/fire engine to fulfill a 
Washington Surveying and Ra ng 
Bureau requirement to have two 
ladder trucks for the City of Oak 
Harbor.  

Goal:  Re‐rate the City’s insurance ra ng from a class 
4 to class 3, per the Washington Surveying and 
Ra ng Bureau’s standard ra ng scale.  

Objec ve:  A lower ra ng reflects the abili es 
and preparedness of the 
department to respond to 
emergency incidents.  

Objec ve:  Lower ra ng reduces property 
insurance rates.  

Objec ve:  Insurance rates for businesses and 
some residences may be decreased 
when the City has earned a lower 
insurance ra ng.  

Goal:   Sponsor six ‐ eight Paid‐on‐call Recruit 
Firefighters per year to a end the Cer fied 
Recruit Firefigh ng Academy and cer fy to 
the IFSAC Firefighter 1 standard.  

Objec ve:   Increase the total number of paid‐
on‐call personnel.  

Goal:   Con nued effort in Public Educa on on fire 
safety and disaster preparedness.  

Objec ve:   Reduce loss and prepare for 
disasters that are likely to occur in 
the Oak Harbor area.  

Goal:   Con nue cer fica on process for Firefighter 2, 
Fire Officer 1 and 2, Fire Inves gator, and 
Driver/Operator.  

Objec ve: To maintain highly qualified 
personnel.  

Goals & Objectives 

53



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 51  

Goal:  Increase department staffing levels.  

Objec ve:  [op on 1] Hire, as a minimum, four 
(4) career firefighters to staff 
Sta on 81 in order to provide 24/7 
coverage on two (2) fire engines.  

  OR [op on 2] Hire, as a minimum, 
six (6) career firefighters to staff 
Sta on 82 in order to provide 24/7 
coverage at that sta on. Posi ons 
can be staggered on the hiring, 2 
or 3 in 2015 and 2 or 3 in 2016. 

Objec ve:  Hire a full  me Office Assistant to 
assist with data entry, payroll, 
training, maintenance, and 
opera onal reports.  

Goal:   Replace the current MTR2000 analog base 
sta on / transmi er for the fire department. 
Purchase and install at ICOM a GTR 8000.  

Objec ve:   Replace the current MTR2000 
analog base radio that is more 
than 15 years old. The current 
radio / transmi er will not operate 
on the new P‐25 Federal guidelines 
as required for the digital band. 
Parts will become obsolete within 
the next 2‐3 years. A Federal 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
was applica on was submi ed in 
2015 reques ng assistance with 
this purchase. If awarded, funds 
will be available in 2016.  

Goal:   Purchase replacement and new firefigh ng 
tools and equipment for suppression 
ac vi es.  

Objec ve:   To replace old and nearly worn out 
fire suppression tools and 
equipment to include portable 
circular saws, Blitz fire monitors, 
thermal imaging cameras, and 
ven la on fans. 

Goals & Objectives 

HIGH RISK ENTRY TEAM TRAINING Photos these pages of a multi-agency Active Shooter Training Drill at North Whidbey Middle School on 
December 21, 2015. Coordinated by Island County Department of Emergency Management, this drill brought together law enforcement from 
Island County, Skagit County, and  Oak Harbor Police Department, EMS personnel from Whidbey General Hospital, North Whidbey Fire & 

Rescue, and Oak Harbor Fire Department, Oak Harbor School District personnel, and volunteers from OHHS JROTC program (complete with 
stage-makeup gun shots and other wounds to help make the drill realistic). (OHFD Photos, L. Titherington, 2015) 

54



52 — Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report  

Le ers received from Oak Harbor 
Elementary School forth grade 
students (September 11, 2015) 

“Thank you for serving us and risking 
your lives and helping us. You are 
really good heroes and you save 
people from houses and put out 
fires. You also save the animals in 
forests. I think you are the best 
between police officers and soldiers. 
I know some mes you have to leave 
your family and maybe your best 
friend dies. I feel sorry for you. I like 
you for reading this, maybe you can 
read one of your friends it might be 
about the same thing I said or not. I 
hope you like this le er and that you 
remember September 11, 2001.” 
Sincerely, Kiersten 

“You risk your lives to save us. You 
save people from fires in their home. 
You fight the fires and forest fires. 
You are very brave firefighters. In 
911 lots of firefighters lost their lives 
on that day. That day was when the 
twin tower got hit from plane 
crashed” Sincerely, Ethan 

“I know you guys risk your lives every 
day pu ng out house fires, saving 
people, saving animals, and pu ng 
out forest fires. I appreciate all you 
do. So I just wanted to take a few 
moments to tell you that! You guys 
die saving the life of someone you 
don’t even know and I just think that 

is amazing! When I grow up, I hope 
to be just like you guys.” Sincerely, 
Catherine 

“Thank you for risking your life for 
others that need your help. Thank 
you for saving the forest in Easter 
Washington. Without you Eastern 
Washington’s forest would be 
burning un l Winter. Thank you for 
saving people’s houses.” Sincerely, 
Tay 

“Thank you for pu ng out big fires, 
saving our forests, and saving our 
house by pu ng the fires out. Thank 
you for risking your lives for other 
people. Also thank you for saving 
people. Thank you for being away 
from your family for a couple hours 
every day.” Sincerely, Karima 

“I love that you risk your life for us 
and I know that you help us a lot and 
I know that you help cats in a tree, 
you put out fires, and I know that 
you care about us or you would not 
be doing this for us and if you 
weren’t there everybody’s houses 
would be gone. So, I say, “Thank 
You” for all you do for us.” Sincerely, 
Samantha 

“Thank you for saving people from 
the fires that have started from 
something. I wanted to take some of 
your  me to thank you for saving 
people’s lives. I know there are fires 
somewhere else so you have to leave 

your families and risk your life in 
burning buildings to save people so I 
wanted to say thanks.” Sincerely, 
Makenza 

“I know you risk your life, to save a 
lot of people’s lives. You put out fires 
and you might get an emergency 
and almost die, but we will always 
remember you forever because you 
are special.” Sincerely, Rylee 

“I’m very glad you are working to 
risk your life for people in need. I 
think firemen like you are working 
extra hard do to the fires by Lake 
Chelan. I bet your family is proud. I 
bet your friends are proud! Thank 
you for literally everything.” 
Sincerely, Gracie 

“Thank you for taking a risk 
almost every day. And for all 
the people you help. And 
thank you for saving dogs, 
cats, and everybody’s pets. 
And thank you for pu ng out 
fires and saving people, 
animals, and houses. You risk 
your lives to save us, so Thank 
You!” Sincerely, Jeremy 

“I wanted to thank you for 
risking your life to save us 
every day. I am really happy 
that you guys worked together 
to put out the wild fire and 
saved the trees. I want to 
thank you for saving people 

and houses. Thank you for 
everything you do. Without you 
everything would be on fire. Thank 
you.” Sincerely, Meekah 

“You are important to so many 
people. You help so many people. 
You are loved by lots of people. You 
risk your life for lots of people. You 
are a special someone. You save 
nature, you save lives, and you save 
homes. One  me I saw a house fire 
next to the police sta on, and one 
me I saw a tree on fire. You and 

your team are very important.” 
Sincerely, Kaylee 

Thank You Notes 

Support and appreciation from those we serve 
55



Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report — 53  

Thank You Notes 

56



2015 Annual Report 
Oak Harbor Fire Department 
 
Copyright © 2016 
Oak Harbor, Washington 
 
Produced and presented by Ray Merrill, Fire Chief 
Editor: Angela Braunstein, Administrative Assistant 

Thank you to department personnel for division reports and statistics:  Deputy Chief Mike Buxton, Prevention; 
Captain Craig Anderson , Training Division;  Captain Mike Engle, Maintenance Division;  

Firefighter Steve McCalmont, OHFF Association; and Firefighter Otto Haffner, Benchmarking Data. 
 

The Oak Harbor Fire Department acknowledges the following for photographs appearing in this report:  
Cheryl Barth, Angela Braunstein, Mike Buxton, and department photographer Laura Titherington. 

 
An electronic version of this publication is available at www.oakharbor.org 

The key message of 2015's Fire Prevention Week 
campaign was to install smoke alarms in every 
bedroom, outside each separate sleeping area, 
and on every level of your home, including the 
basement. Larger homes may need more alarms.   

57



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting on March 1, 
2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular City 
Council Meeting on March 1, 
2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 3/01/2016 Minutes

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 3/01/2016 Minutes

58

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457387057_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – March 1, 2016 
Page 1 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

March 1, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Beth Munns Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Tara Hizon Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 

Fire Department Personnel  
Chief of Police Ed Green 
Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
Executive Assistant to City Administrator Nicole 
Tesch 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

Councilmember Almberg was absent. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Pastor Jon Draskovic of Whidbey Presbyterian Church provided the invocation, and then Mayor 
Severns led the led the pledge of allegiance. 

EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS 

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to excuse Councilmember Almberg, seconded by 
  Councilmember Hizon, unanimously approved. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 
  seconded by Councilmember Servatius, and the motion was unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Proclamation 
Councilmember Wasinger read the Proclamation in Honor of St. Patrick’s Day, accepted by the 
Irish Wildlife Society. 

59



Regular Meeting Minutes – March 1, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:09 p.m. 
 

Citizens Speaking 
Bob Olsen 

 
The comment period was closed at 6:12 p.m.  
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on February 16, 2016 and Work-
shop Meeting on February 24, 2016 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers  
 

Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Consent Agenda Items as presented,  
    motion seconded by Councilmember Munns, motion passed by unanimous vote.  

 
 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
Dr. Merriman announced that he and the several members of the Council will be traveling to 
Washington D.C. for the NLC Conference next week. 
 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   
 
Councilmembers asked follow-up questions regarding the Clean Water Facility Project. 
 
 2016 Marathon Update by the Elk’s Lodge 
 
Jason Wayne of the Elks Lodge provided the monthly update on the 2016 Whidbey Island Mara-
thon.  
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Bob Severns introduced the new art displayed in the Council Chambers, by Artist Carol 
Doss.  He announced that Oak Harbor Mainstreet Association has a successful fundraising plan 
this year to advance the waterfront community. Oak Harbor Mainstreet hosts meetings on a 
weekly basis and interested citizens may attend. The Mayor encouraged members of the public 
to join the Association. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao had no comments. 

 

60



Regular Meeting Minutes – March 1, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 

Councilmember Campbell had no comments 

Councilmember Munns thanked the City for representation at AWC and encouraged Council to 
write a letter of support for MRSC as the legislature may cut their funds. 

Councilmember Servatius no comments. 

Councilmember Hizon commented on Downtown Oak Harbor.  

Councilmember Wasinger had no comments. 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 

Ordinance No. 1756:  Issuance of Waterworks Utility Bonds  
City Administrator Dr. Merriman provided the staff report on this item. 

Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 6:48 p.m., no comments, closed at 6:48 
p.m. 

Councilmembers asked questions regarding this item.  

Councilmember Servatius requested a basic cash flow analysis of the continuing status of this 
project.   

Ordinance No. 1756:  Issuance of Waterworks Utility Bonds 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1756, seconded by 
  Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved. 

Resolution 16-11: Support for OHSD Economic Impact Study 
City Administrator Dr. Merriman presented the staff report on this item and provided a power 
point presentation in regards to the NAS Whidbey Island Projected Military Growth. 

Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 7:00 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:00  
p.m. 

Resolution 16-11: Support for OHSD (Oak Harbor School District) Economic Impact 
Study 

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to approve Resolution 16-11 Support for OHSD Impact 
  Study, seconded by Councilmember Hizon, unanimously approved. 

Professional Services Agreement – Carletti Architects Feasibility Study for new Fire Station 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill provided the staff report.  

Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 7:09 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:09  
p.m. 

Councilmembers asked their respective questions. 

61



Regular Meeting Minutes – March 1, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

 
Professional Services Agreement – Feasibility Study with Carletti Architects for a new 
Fire Station 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to Authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional Ser- 

   vice Agreement with Carletti Architects in the amount not to exceed $61,200.00 to  
   complete a feasibility study as to the need for and appropriate location of a west side  
   fire station, seconded by Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Mayor Severns called a twenty (20) minute recess for Executive Session at 7:29 p.m. to Discuss 
Review of Public Employees Performance and Wells Fargo Property Acquisition. 
 
Mayor Severns reconvened the meeting into Open Session at 7:43 p.m. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Wasinger moved to approve the purchase of the southern 88.4 feet  

 of the Wells Fargo property located at 361 SE Pioneer Way in the amount of     
 $236,345.25 plus interest, taxes and costs as outlined in the Settlement Agreement  
 and to authorize the Mayor to sign the Settlement Agreement as reviewed and  
 accepted by Wells Fargo on February 25, 2016. The motion was seconded by    
 Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  

 
ADJOURN 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
           Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk and  

Nicole A. Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

62



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers 

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165669 through 165868 in the amount of $708,173.24.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165669 through 165868 in the amount of $708,173.24.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

63

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457562608_at.pdf


03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
1

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165669 3/1/2016 0008121  GRANICUS, INC 70182 2015 COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION SOFTWARE  11,799.39
Total :  11,799.39

 165670 3/1/2016 0008121  GRANICUS, INC 70296 2015 COUNCIL SOFTWARE SERVICE  1,945.16
Total :  1,945.16

 165671 3/4/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  260.50
Total :  260.50

 165672 3/4/2016 0005085  SEVERNS, ROBERT TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  260.50
Total :  260.50

 165673 3/4/2016 0007029  SERVATIUS, JOEL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  260.50
Total :  260.50

 165674 3/4/2016 0000696  PAGGAO, DANNY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  260.50
Total :  260.50

 165675 3/4/2016 0005005  MUNNS, BETH TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  260.50
Total :  260.50

 165676 3/4/2016 0007029  SERVATIUS, JOEL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  313.20
Total :  313.20

 165677 3/7/2016 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 030716 PREMIUMS  40.29
Total :  40.29

 165678 3/8/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  6,094.75
Total :  6,094.75

 165679 3/8/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 030116 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  792.00
Total :  792.00

 165680 3/9/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 24165 FEB 2016 MONTHLY CLEANING  491.92
 3,066.58FEB 2016 JANITORIAL SERVICES24236

Total :  3,558.50

1Page:
64



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
2

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165681 3/9/2016 0008158  ACTIVE SHOOTER TRAINING, LLC 687 REGISTRATION/PADRTA  814.38
Total :  814.38

 165682 3/9/2016 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20160104 MONTHLY LICENSE  199.00
Total :  199.00

 165683 3/9/2016 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 25406 KEYS  13.59
 6.00KEYS25425

 135.87SAFE HANDLE REPAIR52762
Total :  155.46

 165684 3/9/2016 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 FEB 2016 WATER PURCHASED  129,500.00
 1,215.00FEB 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01
 9,751.17FEB 2016 WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  140,466.17

 165685 3/9/2016 0008140  ANDERSON, MARY TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  110.05
Total :  110.05

 165686 3/9/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988387962 UNIFORM SERVICES  16.59
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988387965
 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988387966
 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988394459
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988394460
 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988394461
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988394462
 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988394463
 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988394464
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988394465
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988398948
 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988398949
 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988405406
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988405407
 87.85UNIFORM SERVICES1988405408
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988405409
 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988405410
 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988405411

2Page:
65



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
3

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165686 3/9/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988405412
 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988409834
 20.52UNIFORM SERVICES1988409837
 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988409838
 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988416306
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988416307
 25.17UNIFORM SERVICES1988416308
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988416309
 19.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988416310
 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988416311
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988416312
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988420755
 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988420756
 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988427271
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988427272
 17.20UNIFORM SERVICES1988427273
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988427274
 22.35UNIFORM SERVICES1988427275
 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988427276
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988427277
 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988431617
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988431620
 27.13UNIFORM SERVICES1988431621

Total :  951.00

 165687 3/9/2016 0005550  ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS 2016-03-15 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR KIOSK  11,739.60
Total :  11,739.60

 165688 3/9/2016 0006865  ARMADA 030416 37-533043-02/18-253000-02/01-345000-02-C  984.56
Total :  984.56

 165689 3/9/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 165820 PEST CONTROL  108.70
Total :  108.70

 165690 3/9/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0876921-IN FUEL  6,014.79
 3,952.40FUEL0876978-IN

3Page:
66



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
4

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  9,967.19 165690 3/9/2016 0004019 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS

 165691 3/9/2016 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 39566 2016 DRUG ALCOHOL TESTING CONSORTIUM  2,047.00
Total :  2,047.00

 165692 3/9/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0224201 AIRCARDS  407.13
Total :  407.13

 165693 3/9/2016 0007688  AUTOZONE 3385918593 DIP WASH BRUSH  55.09
 19.26GAS CAN3385918644

Total :  74.35

 165694 3/9/2016 0000064  AVANTI INTERNATIONAL 33335 CARTRIDGE CASE  631.00
Total :  631.00

 165695 3/9/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1600396-IN TESTING  122.00
Total :  122.00

 165696 3/9/2016 0000069  BAILEY, MICHAEL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  173.10
Total :  173.10

 165697 3/9/2016 0000082  BAYSHORE OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC 0671842-001 CABINETS  1,663.11
 242.41LEDGER CABINET0671843-001

Total :  1,905.52

 165698 3/9/2016 0008130  BAYVIEW APPLIANCE & MATTRESS 244 WASHER REPAIR  86.96
Total :  86.96

 165699 3/9/2016 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
 111.00TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE

Total :  131.00

 165700 3/9/2016 0005649  BELLEVUE, CITY OF 30711 ECITYGOV MEMBERSHIP  3,500.00
Total :  3,500.00

 165701 3/9/2016 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 268370 CLEANING CHEMICAL  925.13
Total :  925.13

4Page:
67



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
5

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165702 3/9/2016 0005453  BIXBY, SUE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  19.00
Total :  19.00

 165703 3/9/2016 0002551  BOS, BRYON 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165704 3/9/2016 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165705 3/9/2016 0002943  BRAUNSTEIN, ANGELA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  49.00
Total :  49.00

 165706 3/9/2016 0001074  BRAUNSTEIN, BRIAN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  140.50
Total :  140.50

 165707 3/9/2016 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 2 PROF SVC/NE 4TH AVENUE WATER MAIN REPLAC 72,004.12
Total :  72,004.12

 165708 3/9/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 761136 SUPPLIES  883.03
Total :  883.03

 165709 3/9/2016 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 030216 PUBLIC DEFENSE  600.00
Total :  600.00

 165710 3/9/2016 0007943  CAUFFMAN, GIDEON 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165711 3/9/2016 0008157  CHRISTENSEN MANUFACTURING CORP 68967A PICK UP TRAK  1,351.62
Total :  1,351.62

 165712 3/9/2016 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 28578 TOWING SERVICES  194.57
Total :  194.57

 165713 3/9/2016 0002000  CLARK'S NATIVE TREES & SHRUBS 15918 OAK TREES  146.61
Total :  146.61

 165714 3/9/2016 0000177  CLEMENTS, MICHAEL G. TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  140.50
Total :  140.50

5Page:
68



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
6

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165715 3/9/2016 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 030416 PETTY CASH  5.00
Total :  5.00

 165716 3/9/2016 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 52246 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  208.16
Total :  208.16

 165717 3/9/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 BUSINESS SERVICES  119.76
 19.32XFINITY8498300270032028

 241.37INTERNET8498300271046803
 241.15INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  621.60

 165718 3/9/2016 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 38753 AW#68  85.86
Total :  85.86

 165719 3/9/2016 0008141  CRITICAL CONCEPTS CONSULTING 1345 REGISTRATION/CLEMENTS/BRAUNSTEIN  400.00
Total :  400.00

 165720 3/9/2016 0000217  CUES, INC 451974 SOFTWARE  1,800.00
Total :  1,800.00

 165721 3/9/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-92450 MODULE/GASKETS/CLAMPS  1,047.86
Total :  1,047.86

 165722 3/9/2016 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3310116 BID CALL/MARATHON SHUTTLE SERVICES  136.50
Total :  136.50

 165723 3/9/2016 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 404365 POWER AMP MAINTENANCE  533.17
Total :  533.17

 165724 3/9/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-50 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-50
 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-34
 60.00PORTABLES1-533127-2
 70.00CAN PUMPING1-534551

Total :  310.00

 165725 3/9/2016 0007879  DOUGLAS, LAWERANCE 902 MOORAGE REFUND  25.00

6Page:
69



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
7

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  25.00 165725 3/9/2016 0007879 0007879  DOUGLAS, LAWERANCE

 165726 3/9/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 022916 FEB 2016 LAUNDRY SERVICES  445.07
Total :  445.07

 165727 3/9/2016 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 2016-BA0020567 BISOLIDS PERMIT REVISED  2,113.14
Total :  2,113.14

 165728 3/9/2016 0008144  EGGLESTON, ROBERT 4148 MOORAGE REFUND  389.71
Total :  389.71

 165729 3/9/2016 0005842  EMERY, DEANNA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  22.95
Total :  22.95

 165730 3/9/2016 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 13-475-14 PROF SVC/SITE PREP  38,503.92
Total :  38,503.92

 165731 3/9/2016 0005826  ESPARZA, NIKKI TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  114.00
Total :  114.00

 165732 3/9/2016 0001078  EVERGREEN SAFETY COUNCIL 070559 FLAGGER RECERTIFICATION  1,191.88
Total :  1,191.88

 165733 3/9/2016 0007864  EXCAL VISUAL, INC 647 DVDS  808.75
Total :  808.75

 165734 3/9/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK22262 BRSH/THRDLCKR/COLD GAV/WASHER  99.58
 32.33PLIERS/NOZZLEWAOAK22281
 57.07STRT 2HOLE STRAPWAOAK22350
 6.09BOLT GAUGEWAOAK22351

 21.60WASHER/NUTSWAOAK22361
 356.84TOWELWAOAK22379
 45.39SHKLE/HCSWAOAK22396
 43.18GALVMEDSPLIT/NUTSWAOAK22447

Total :  662.08

 165735 3/9/2016 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS 5-333-38382 SHIPPING  88.17

7Page:
70



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
8

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  88.17 165735 3/9/2016 0000308 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS

 165736 3/9/2016 0008122  FRONDOZO, KEVIN 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165737 3/9/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,385.04
 248.25CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568

 71.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 76.94CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 65.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651
 65.96CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789

 407.50CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 70.38CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902
 92.72CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,615.44

 165738 3/9/2016 0008142  FULL BORE, INC 030316 HYDRANT DEPOSIT BALANCE  918.05
Total :  918.05

 165739 3/9/2016 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,005.77
 423.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  1,428.77

 165740 3/9/2016 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2015867 LOCK REPAIRS  733.73
Total :  733.73

 165741 3/9/2016 0000340  GIFFORD, KATHY 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165742 3/9/2016 0007998  GOOD TO GO TB-161307101 TOLL BILL  2.75
Total :  2.75

 165743 3/9/2016 0001598  GORDON D KEYES DDS, INC 030216 INMATE SERVICES  312.00
Total :  312.00

 165744 3/9/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9027428425 GEL DRYER  160.06

8Page:
71



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
9

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  160.06 165744 3/9/2016 0000349 0000349  GRAINGER

 165745 3/9/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 030716 REIMBURSEMENT  8,333.34
Total :  8,333.34

 165746 3/9/2016 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8365 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00
Total :  940.00

 165747 3/9/2016 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 633975 ALARM MONITORING  819.00
 236.97FIRE SYSTEM MAINTENANCE638229

Total :  1,055.97

 165748 3/9/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4138629 ADAPTERS/VALVES  1,048.74
 575.48BALL VALVESI4140500
 82.88FREIGHTI4143586

Total :  1,707.10

 165749 3/9/2016 0000382  HELTSLEY, RAY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  20.00
 314.70EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  334.70

 165750 3/9/2016 0007871  HERRICK POLYGRAPH SERVICE 487 PRE-EMPLOYMENT  300.00
 300.00PRE-EMPLOYMENT488

Total :  600.00

 165751 3/9/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 51576 CNTCLNQD/LECTRA CLEAN/PGP/TAPE  47.97
 27.13DOORSTOPS592260
 26.95CORNER BRACE/20907574089

Total :  102.05

 165752 3/9/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 871271 COFFEE SUPPLIES  140.33
Total :  140.33

 165753 3/9/2016 0006520  HOPKINS, CAMERON 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
 322.00TRAVEL ADVANCETRAVEL ADVANCE

Total :  342.00

 165754 3/9/2016 0000396  I-COM 16-UFG2-10 2ND QTR 2016 MEMBER FEE  7,469.51

9Page:
72



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
10

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165754 3/9/2016 (Continued)0000396  I-COM
 94,688.932ND QTR 2016 MEMBER FEE16-UFQ2-2

Total :  102,158.44

 165755 3/9/2016 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 022616 DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTION PANEL  166.67
Total :  166.67

 165756 3/9/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 022916 FEB 2016 TIPPING FEES  70,205.81
Total :  70,205.81

 165757 3/9/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 030116 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  231.73
Total :  231.73

 165758 3/9/2016 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 015 FEB 2016 PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

 165759 3/9/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 030116 FEB 2016 RECYCLING  4,693.10
Total :  4,693.10

 165760 3/9/2016 0007910  ISLAND DIVE SERVICES 58 DIVE SERVICES  65.22
Total :  65.22

 165761 3/9/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114517235089 INMATE MEDS  25.90
 97.94INMATE MEDS114517235146
 63.52INMATE MEDS114521224627

Total :  187.36

 165762 3/9/2016 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 240186 WATER/MARINA  14.30
 7.15WATER/MARINA240436

 652.20CHLORINE240599
Total :  673.65

 165763 3/9/2016 0007604  JANSEN, JOSH 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165764 3/9/2016 0008147  JOHANSEN, CURT 1773 MOORAGE REFUND  149.22
Total :  149.22

10Page:
73



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
11

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165765 3/9/2016 0008148  JOHNSON, ROBERT 6050 MOORAGE REFUND  55.00
Total :  55.00

 165766 3/9/2016 0008151  KAYE, MATT 474 MOORAGE REFUND  55.00
Total :  55.00

 165767 3/9/2016 0000476  KERR, JACK 02-16 FEB 2016 PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00
Total :  1,400.00

 165768 3/9/2016 0004458  KETCHUM, NEIL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  174.07
Total :  174.07

 165769 3/9/2016 0008145  KIRCHER, THOMAS 5741 MOORAGE REFUND  18.34
Total :  18.34

 165770 3/9/2016 0008143  KROON, THOMAS 64 MOORAGE REFUND  35.90
Total :  35.90

 165771 3/9/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5038210MB DUMP FEES  47.88
 516.77ASPHALT5038228MB

Total :  564.65

 165772 3/9/2016 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 01 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.50
Total :  227.50

 165773 3/9/2016 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165774 3/9/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400231444 WHEEL ALIGNMENT  90.76
 636.48TUBELESS41400232674
 61.14THRUST ALIGNMENT41400232734
 61.14THRUST ALIGNMENT41400233197

Total :  849.52

 165775 3/9/2016 0007251  LEWIS, ERIN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  114.00
Total :  114.00

 165776 3/9/2016 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 1404645-20160229 FEB 2016 MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35

11Page:
74



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
12

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  54.35 165776 3/9/2016 0004502 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS

 165777 3/9/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2133220-00 GLOVES  46.91
 84.63TEST KIT2133364-00

-380.46STRIKER TORRENT2133585-00
 105.62SWEATERS2134215-00
 179.79SS POLY2134216-00

Total :  36.49

 165778 3/9/2016 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00065661 HOSE/ELBOW  628.68
 2,535.61HOSE/PARTS00065662

Total :  3,164.29

 165779 3/9/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  72.00
Total :  72.00

 165780 3/9/2016 0000524  LYNDEN ICE 111006514 ICE  144.00
Total :  144.00

 165781 3/9/2016 0004928  MADDOX, CHARLES 4530 MOORAGE REFUND  110.00
Total :  110.00

 165782 3/9/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 110176 YARD WASTE  25.00
 230.55YARD WASTE110177
 30.00YARD WASTE110213
 94.05YARD WASTE110223
 30.00YARD WASTE110227

 104.20YARD WASTE110279
 123.80YARD WASTE110304
 10.00YARD WASTE110351
 15.00YARD WASTE110401
 20.00YARD WASTE110436
 20.00YARD WASTE110450
 30.80YARD WASTE110456
 30.00YARD WASTE110486
 20.00YARD WASTE110503
 20.00YARD WASTE110511
 10.00YARD WASTE110636

12Page:
75



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
13

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165782 3/9/2016 (Continued)0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY
 5.00YARD WASTE110816

Total :  818.40

 165783 3/9/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 321406 GROCERIES  317.49
 4.55PHARMACY541740

 352.93GROCERIES850912
 18.74GROCERIES850914

Total :  693.71

 165784 3/9/2016 0003375  MATROS, JOHN 2344 MOORAGE REFUND  234.44
Total :  234.44

 165785 3/9/2016 0008146  MATTER, FRITZ 4675 MOORAGE REFUND  152.75
Total :  152.75

 165786 3/9/2016 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 022216 FEB 2016 HEARING EXAMINER  1,708.33
Total :  1,708.33

 165787 3/9/2016 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0572624-IN ZYME-CRETE  780.22
Total :  780.22

 165788 3/9/2016 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165789 3/9/2016 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV130414 UNIVERSAL PAIL KIT  86.78
Total :  86.78

 165790 3/9/2016 0001041  MUNICIPAL ATTORNEYS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF1815824-90242711 REGISTRATION/ESPARZA  245.00
 235.00REGISTRATION/LEWIS1815824-90244235

Total :  480.00

 165791 3/9/2016 0007586  NAGEL, GARRETT 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165792 3/9/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCR0039640 HEATER -153.36
 165.02HEATERMVCS0256940
 103.49SWITCHMVCS0257064

13Page:
76



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
14

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165792 3/9/2016 (Continued)0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY
 831.61ENGINE REPAIRMVW00052801

Total :  946.76

 165793 3/9/2016 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0575212-IN FUEL  316.02
Total :  316.02

 165794 3/9/2016 0000621  NIIRO, CEDRIC 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165795 3/9/2016 0000623  NITCHER, WENDY 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165796 3/9/2016 0000640  NORTHWEST BIOSOLIDS MGMT ASSOC 02232016-01 MEMBERSHIP DUES  176.00
Total :  176.00

 165797 3/9/2016 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE 3018 MAR 2016 ADVERTISING  760.00
Total :  760.00

 165798 3/9/2016 0003946  OAC SERVICES, INC 130889 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR WWT  240.00
Total :  240.00

 165799 3/9/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 267534 INT/PAINTBRUSH/SPRAY  57.02
 31.33PLUG/UNION/CEMENT/ELBOW267609
 2.80WASHER267611

 46.91PIPE/CLEANER/COUPLE/CEMENT/PRIMER267617
 1.37SCREWS267618
 0.16SCREWS267620
 8.14BATTERY267714

 73.73BRUSHES/HAMMER/PLUG/SWITCH267720
 14.11ANCHOR267792
 39.10CAR WASH/VALVE267909
 62.44GLASS CLEANER/SPONGE/VELCRO267915
 35.09BULBS267929
 5.42GLUE267965

 29.74FASTENERS/ELBOW/ADAPTER267982
 9.22FLUID/CLEANER267985
 1.52PIPE268078

14Page:
77



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
15

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165799 3/9/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE
 5.51HYDRANT MAINTENANCE268103

 73.91PIPEK66949
Total :  497.52

 165800 3/9/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-265426 STEERING SHIFT  34.45
 3.91MINI LAMP001-265744
 9.77MINI LAMP001-265745

Total :  48.13

 165801 3/9/2016 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 030416 EXPO TRAVEL EXPENSES  376.31
Total :  376.31

 165802 3/9/2016 0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS 110409 CONTRACT SERVICES  208.95
Total :  208.95

 165803 3/9/2016 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 378467 TONER  285.47
Total :  285.47

 165804 3/9/2016 0007027  ORSWELL EVENTS, LLC 2015091 PERFORMANCE FEE  1,000.00
Total :  1,000.00

 165805 3/9/2016 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO TS69593 DOOR REPAIRS  884.82
Total :  884.82

 165806 3/9/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0095884 TIRES  338.17
 80.29TIRES0095896

 557.44TIRES0096123
Total :  975.90

 165807 3/9/2016 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20986139 BIT SET  213.12
Total :  213.12

 165808 3/9/2016 0000709  PERS 01143138 DEC 2015 UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98
 26.98JAN 2016 UNFUNDED LIABILITY01147904

Total :  53.96

 165809 3/9/2016 0006815  PICCO, MICHAEL 4737 MOORAGE REFUND  274.50

15Page:
78



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
16

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  274.50 165809 3/9/2016 0006815 0006815  PICCO, MICHAEL

 165810 3/9/2016 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165811 3/9/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165812 3/9/2016 0008153  PUBLIC FINANCIAL MGMT, INC 12621 FINANCIAL ADVISORY FEES  40,000.00
Total :  40,000.00

 165813 3/9/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200003131170 ELECTRICITY/WELL #7  13.68
 101.02ELECTRICITY/1019 SW SWANTOWN AVE200004839284
 13.68ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13,847.61ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421
Total :  13,975.99

 165814 3/9/2016 0008155  RAMADA TUKWILA SEATAC HOTEL 5362 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BAZA  120.02
Total :  120.02

 165815 3/9/2016 0008150  RINELLA, MITCHELL 5072 MOORAGE REFUND  15.72
Total :  15.72

 165816 3/9/2016 0000780  SABALAUSKY, JANET TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  241.50
Total :  241.50

 165817 3/9/2016 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 022916 PETTY CASH  259.76
Total :  259.76

 165818 3/9/2016 0003685  SIMS, NEAL 5473 MOORAGE REFUND  216.50
Total :  216.50

 165819 3/9/2016 0000830  SIRENNET.COM 0197751-IN LIGHTBAR REPL KIT  152.40
Total :  152.40

 165820 3/9/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-318611 LED BEACON  423.47
 48.92TUBING14-318849
 49.30TIRES14-318926

16Page:
79



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
17

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165820 3/9/2016 (Continued)0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC
-91.75KITS14-319255

Total :  429.94

 165821 3/9/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 378672 WATER TANK  759.49
 239.14WATER TANK445025
 32.66PROPANE445080
 16.76PROPANE445215

 108.69BACKPACK SPRAYER445240
 109.77HERBICIDE445244

Total :  1,266.51

 165822 3/9/2016 0000853  SKAGIT RIVER STEEL & RECYCLING 61370 TUBE  99.24
Total :  99.24

 165823 3/9/2016 0008156  SOFTWAREONE, INC US-PSI-447985 ENTERPRISE PLATFORM  42,297.64
Total :  42,297.64

 165824 3/9/2016 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0083589-CM COOLER -853.81
 199.78PRESSURE SWITCH0083821-IN
 202.69CONVERTER0083822-IN
 218.14SWITCH TEMP0083985-IN
 678.66SLIDE BLOCK ASSEMBLY0084180-IN

Total :  445.46

 165825 3/9/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW683556 RFP MARATHON SHUTTLE  117.12
 144.54CITY APPLICATIONSWCW684223
 142.04CITY APPLICATIONSWCW684224

Total :  403.70

 165826 3/9/2016 0007904  SPECK, DAVE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00
Total :  30.00

 165827 3/9/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 021916 LIFE/POCFF  358.13
Total :  358.13

 165828 3/9/2016 0007203  STANFORD, TRAVIS 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00

17Page:
80



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
18

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  20.00 165828 3/9/2016 0007203 0007203  STANFORD, TRAVIS

 165829 3/9/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3291728484 TAGS  36.32
 188.00CLEANER/CLOG REMOVER3292644244
 54.34CLEANER3292644245
 78.18MEMORY CARD3293188620
 64.76ENVELOPES/MARKERS3293188621

 143.55TONER3293188622
 6.73RUBBER BANDS3293773161

 21.16RIBBON SPOOL3293773162
 40.37TAPE/MOUSE PAD/KEYBOARD3293773163
 9.39PADS3293773164

 30.06FOLDERS/BUBBLE MAILERS3293773165
 44.79PADS/JACKETS3293773166

Total :  717.65

 165830 3/9/2016 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009950 BOOTS/ZYLSTRA  170.57
Total :  170.57

 165831 3/9/2016 0000933  TEREX SERVICES, INC 90333935 ANSI INSPECTION  2,367.57
Total :  2,367.57

 165832 3/9/2016 0008154  TESCH, NICOLE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  155.00
Total :  155.00

 165833 3/9/2016 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  155.00
Total :  155.00

 165834 3/9/2016 0008139  TIEGS, PHILIP 022216 EXPO TRANSPORATION  206.40
Total :  206.40

 165835 3/9/2016 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 109356 POSTS  774.30
Total :  774.30

 165836 3/9/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 030116 COURT/BC FEES  10,607.90
Total :  10,607.90

 165837 3/9/2016 0005888  TRIVAN TRUCK BODY, LLC 10055 LIFTGATE  1,157.66

18Page:
81



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
19

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,157.66 165837 3/9/2016 0005888 0005888  TRIVAN TRUCK BODY, LLC

 165838 3/9/2016 0006331  ULINE 74817119 MAT  180.24
Total :  180.24

 165839 3/9/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W086 SHIPPING  5.04
Total :  5.04

 165840 3/9/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 021816 LONG TERM CARE  338.12
Total :  338.12

 165841 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001332901 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  3,259.11
Total :  3,259.11

 165842 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  917.05
Total :  917.05

 165843 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  489.32
Total :  489.32

 165844 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  474.58
Total :  474.58

 165845 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  198.04
Total :  198.04

 165846 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  90.71
Total :  90.71

 165847 3/9/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001286149 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  5.16
Total :  5.16

 165848 3/9/2016 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 883125 SORBENT SOCKS  988.09
 225.02COUPLING883146

Total :  1,213.11

 165849 3/9/2016 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 6020176 FEB 2016 LOCATES  92.40
Total :  92.40

19Page:
82



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
20

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165850 3/9/2016 0007173  VON HADEN, BRADLEY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  49.00
Total :  49.00

 165851 3/9/2016 0007388  WALSTAD, TIM 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165852 3/9/2016 0007977  WARNER, ALEXANDER TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  14.00
Total :  14.00

 165853 3/9/2016 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 201125863 REGISTRATION/GARDNER  1,250.00
Total :  1,250.00

 165854 3/9/2016 0005079  WASHINGTON INSTITUTE OF SPORTS OH1503 WELLNESS EXAM  682.38
Total :  682.38

 165855 3/9/2016 0008152  WASHINGTON STATE SUPPORT REGIS IN4425051 CASE/ACCOUNT #IN4425051  12.51
Total :  12.51

 165856 3/9/2016 0007331  WASHINGTON TRACTOR 928849 GASKET/THERMOSTAT  42.56
Total :  42.56

 165857 3/9/2016 0002032  WASHINGTON WASTEWATER PERSONNL 030416 EXAMINATION FEES/JAMESON/VONHADEN  30.00
Total :  30.00

 165858 3/9/2016 0000985  WASTE MANAGEMENT 030716 DUMPSTER DEPOSIT REFUND  4,601.59
Total :  4,601.59

 165859 3/9/2016 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF47 PROF SVC/GENERAL  8,114.70
Total :  8,114.70

 165860 3/9/2016 0007809  WEST, CODY 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165861 3/9/2016 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC SE42119 VEHICLE REPAIR  730.52
Total :  730.52

 165862 3/9/2016 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1292 JAN 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  166.63
 8,500.00FEB 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER1293

20Page:
83



03/09/2016
Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor
21

12:52:17PM
Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  8,666.63 165862 3/9/2016 0003067 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT

 165863 3/9/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 274687 HOSE ENDS/FITTINGS  109.30
 68.46DISTRIBUTOR ROTOR/CAP274836
 24.76EXHAUST275092

Total :  202.52

 165864 3/9/2016 0002272  WHIDBEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB 021516 REIMBURSABLE COSTS  5,194.39
Total :  5,194.39

 165865 3/9/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48316 BUSINESS CARDS/LOLMAUGH/WILKIE  156.20
 78.10BUSINESS CARDS/SAMPSON48343

Total :  234.30

 165866 3/9/2016 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 4198 URL REQUEST  23.10
Total :  23.10

 165867 3/9/2016 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 030316 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165868 3/9/2016 0008149  ZIPP, ROY 2168 MOORAGE REFUND  166.05
Total :  166.05

Bank total :  708,173.24 200 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 708,173.24Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 200

21Page:
84



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Melissa Riker to 
the Parks Board as a Full 
Member

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Appoint Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member, beginning 1/26/2016 and ending 
12/01/2016.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Melissa Riker was appointed to the Parks Board as the Alternate on February 4, 2014.  On December
1, 2013, Erica Wasinger was appointed to the Parks Board, and on January 25, 2016 Ms. Wasinger 
withdrew from the Parks Board due to her appointment as City Councilmember on January 19, 2016.

Parks Board Members serve 3-year terms,; however, Melissa Riker will serve out the remainder of Ms. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Melissa Riker to 
the Parks Board as a Full 
Member

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Appoint Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member, beginning 1/26/2016 and ending 
12/01/2016.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Melissa Riker was appointed to the Parks Board as the Alternate on February 4, 2014.  On December 
1, 2013, Erica Wasinger was appointed to the Parks Board, and on January 25, 2016 Ms. Wasinger 
withdrew from the Parks Board due to her appointment as City Councilmember on January 19, 2016.

Parks Board Members serve 3-year terms,; however, Melissa Riker will serve out the remainder of Ms. Parks Board Members serve 3-year terms,; however, Melissa Riker will serve out the remainder of Ms. 
Wasinger's term if she is appointed, beginning January 26, 2016 and ending December 1, 2019.  

If Ms. Riker is appointed to serve the remaining months of Ms. Wasinger's term, the Alternate Park 
Board Position will be vacant.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.30.020.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

Parks Board Members serve 3-year terms,; however, Melissa Riker will serve out the remainder of Ms. 
Wasinger's term if she is appointed, beginning January 26, 2016 and ending December 1, 2019.  

If Ms. Riker is appointed to serve the remaining months of Ms. Wasinger's term, the Alternate Park 
Board Position will be vacant.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.30.020.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

85



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Re-appointment: Nora Daniel to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Reappoint Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board (CAB) for a 3-year term, beginning 
March 1, 2016 and ending March 1, 2019.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Nora Daniel was originally appointed on May 7, 2013. If reappointed, Ms. Daniel's term will begin 
March 1, 2016 and end March 1, 2019.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Re-appointment: Nora Daniel to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Reappoint Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board (CAB) for a 3-year term, beginning 
March 1, 2016 and ending March 1, 2019.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Nora Daniel was originally appointed on May 7, 2013. If reappointed, Ms. Daniel's term will begin 
March 1, 2016 and end March 1, 2019.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.030 (c).

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.030 (c).

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

86



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for HVAC 
Unit Replacement at Oak 
Harbor Library

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to:

1) Approve the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College (SVC) as the lead agency to design and 
bid for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall Building;
and

2) Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College, with the City of Oak 
Harbor’s share of the HVAC replacement project not to exceed $170,000.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for HVAC 
Unit Replacement at Oak 
Harbor Library

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to:

1) Approve the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College (SVC) as the lead agency to design and
bid for the replacement of sixteen (16) HVAC units at the Oak Harbor Library and Hayes Hall Building; 
and

2) Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College, with the City of Oak 
Harbor’s share of the HVAC replacement project not to exceed $170,000.Harbor’s share of the HVAC replacement project not to exceed $170,000.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In 1990 the City of Oak Harbor and Skagit Valley College entered into an Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement to jointly construct a Library-Instructional Building located on the campus of Skagit Valley 
College. Under this agreement, the City of Oak Harbor is responsible for the Oak Harbor Library 
structure portion of the building, including the heating, ventilation and cooling system (HVAC), and for a
portion of shared spaces in the building. The building was constructed in 1991 and the HVAC units are 
25 years old and have now exceeded their useful life expectancy. The City and SVC have also been 
experiencing mechanical and operational problems with the existing units.

The City and SVC share spaces in the building, including bathrooms, conference rooms, reading rooms 
and hallways. According to the agreement, the basis for apportioning costs is by floor area. The City is 
responsible for 43.25% of the area and SVC is responsible for 56.75% of the area. SVC takes the lead 
on maintenance and operation but costs are shared.

The building has a total of sixteen (16) HVAC roof top units. Eight (8) are solely for SVC and five (5) 
are solely for the Oak Harbor Library. Three (3) units supply heating to shared spaces. The cost estimate 
to replace all of the units is $393,000, and the City’s share (at 43.25%) is $170,000.

Harbor’s share of the HVAC replacement project not to exceed $170,000.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In 1990 the City of Oak Harbor and Skagit Valley College entered into an Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement to jointly construct a Library-Instructional Building located on the campus of Skagit Valley 
College. Under this agreement, the City of Oak Harbor is responsible for the Oak Harbor Library 
structure portion of the building, including the heating, ventilation and cooling system (HVAC), and for a 
portion of shared spaces in the building. The building was constructed in 1991 and the HVAC units are 
25 years old and have now exceeded their useful life expectancy. The City and SVC have also been 
experiencing mechanical and operational problems with the existing units.

The City and SVC share spaces in the building, including bathrooms, conference rooms, reading rooms 
and hallways. According to the agreement, the basis for apportioning costs is by floor area. The City is 
responsible for 43.25% of the area and SVC is responsible for 56.75% of the area. SVC takes the lead 
on maintenance and operation but costs are shared.

The building has a total of sixteen (16) HVAC roof top units. Eight (8) are solely for SVC and five (5) 
are solely for the Oak Harbor Library. Three (3) units supply heating to shared spaces. The cost estimate 
to replace all of the units is $393,000, and the City’s share (at 43.25%) is $170,000.

87



SVC has taken the lead to manage the replacement program, including design and bidding, and is 
requesting to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the City to complete the project. City staff believes 
it is in the best interest of the City, and may result in cost savings, to enter into this agreement with SVC. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The City’s share of this project is not to exceed $170,000. Funds for this project are available in the 
General Fund.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proposed Interlocal Agreement between SVC & City for HVAC Replacement
2. Letter of Understanding & Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC & City 1990
3. Amendment One to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC & City 1990

SVC has taken the lead to manage the replacement program, including design and bidding, and is 
requesting to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the City to complete the project. City staff believes 
it is in the best interest of the City, and may result in cost savings, to enter into this agreement with SVC. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The City’s share of this project is not to exceed $170,000. Funds for this project are available in the 
General Fund.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proposed Interlocal Agreement between SVC & City for HVAC Replacement
2. Letter of Understanding & Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC & City 1990
3. Amendment One to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC & City 1990

88

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457051966_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457052084_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457052130_at.pdf


Interlocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

 
 

 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 

AND 
The City of Oak Harbor 

 
 
PARTIES TO THE AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between Skagit Valley College, 
hereinafter referred to as "SVC" and the City of Oak Harbor pursuant to the authority granted 
by Chapter 39.34 RCW. 
 
PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT is to coordinate the replacement of HVAC units on 
jointly owned Hayes Hall. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED THAT: Skagit Valley College will enlist the 
services of a consultant to design the replacement of the existing sixteen (16) HVAC units on 
one building named Hayes Hall (SVC) and the Oak Harbor Library (COH).  Eight (8) of the 
HVAC units supply Hayes Hall (SVC) and five (5) of the HVAC units supply the Oak Harbor 
Library (City of Oak Harbor).  Three (3) HVAC units supply to shared space between Hayes 
Hall (SVC) a Oak Harbor Library (City of Oak Harbor).  Representatives of The City of Oak 
Harbor will have the right to approve all design material before the project goes out to bid. 
Skagit Valley College will put the project out to bid and, working with the Department of 
Enterprise Services (DES), work out a contract with the low bidder. Skagit Valley College, 
with input from the City of Oak Harbor will oversee all construction. 
 
Skagit Valley College will be responsible for paying all costs stemming from this project and 
will invoice the City of Oak Harbor (as described below) for 43.25% of all costs.  The cost to 
the City of Oak Harbor shall not exceed $170,000.00. 
 
STATEMENT OF WORK 
SVC shall furnish the necessary personnel, equipment, material and/or service(s) and 
otherwise do all things necessary for or incidental to the performance of the work set forth 
here.  
 
PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
Subject to its other provisions, the period of performance of this Agreement shall commence 
upon final signatures, and be completed by 12/31/2016, unless terminated sooner or 
extended, as provided herein. 
 
PAYMENT 
Compensation for the work provided in accordance with this Agreement has been 
established under the terms of RCW 39.34.130. The parties have determined that the cost of 
accomplishing the work herein will not exceed $393,000. Payment for satisfactory 
performance of the work shall not exceed this amount unless the parties mutually agree to a 

 

Contract No. _______ 

Dates: 

From_______To_____ 

Contract 

Amount$___________ 

 

89



Interlocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

higher amount. Compensation for services shall be based on the following rates; 43.25% of 
all costs. The 43.25% cost allocation is the City of Oak Harbor share of City occupied and 
shared space as agreed upon in an interlocal agreement between Skagit Valley College and 
the City of Oak Harbor dated February 9 1990.  
 
BILLING PROCEDURE 
SVC shall submit invoices no more often than monthly.  Payment to SVC for approved and 
completed work will be made by warrant or account transfer by the City of Oak Harbor within 
30-days of receipt of the invoice. Upon expiration of the Agreement, any claim for payment 
not already made shall be submitted within 30-days after the expiration date or the end of the 
fiscal year, whichever is earlier. 
 
AGREEMENT CHANGES, MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS 
This Agreement may be changed, modified or amended by written agreement executed 
by both parties. 
 
ASSIGNMENT 
The work to be provided under this Agreement, and any claim arising thereunder, is not 
assignable or delegable by either party in whole or in part, without the express prior written 
consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
The program manager for each of the parties shall be responsible for and shall be the 
contact person for all communications and billings regarding the performance of this 
Agreement. 
 
The Program Manager for SVC is:  Dave Scott, 2405 E. College Way, 360-416-7751, 
dave.scott@skagit.edu 
 
The Program Manager for the City of Oak Harbor is Rich Tyhuis, 865 SE Barrington Dr, 360-
279-4753, rtyhuis@oakharbor.org 
 
DISALLOWED COSTS 
The Contractor is responsible for any audit exceptions or disallowed costs incurred by its 
own organization or that of its Subcontractors. 
 
DISPUTES 
In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be determined by a Dispute 
Board in the following manner:  Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one member to 
the Dispute Board. The members so appointed shall jointly appoint an additional member to 
the Dispute Board. The Dispute Board shall review the facts, agreement terms and 
applicable statutes and rules and make a determination of the dispute. The Dispute Board 
shall thereafter decide the dispute with the majority prevailing. The determination of the 
Dispute Board shall be final and binding on the parties hereto. As an alternative to this 
process, either of the parties may request intervention by the Governor, as provided by RCW 
43.17.330, in which event the Governor's process will control. 
 
GOVERNANCE 
This Agreement is entered into pursuant to and under the authority granted by the laws of the 
state of Washington and any applicable federal laws. The provisions of this Agreement shall 
be construed to conform to those laws. 
 

90



Interlocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or between its terms and any 
applicable statute or rule, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the 
following order: 

a. Applicable state and federal statutes and rules; 
b. Statement of work; and 
c. Any other provisions of the agreement, including materials incorporated by reference. 

 
INDEPENDENT CAPACITY 
The employees or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this 
Agreement shall continue to be employees or agents of that party and shall not be 
considered for any purpose to be employees or agents of the other party. 
 
RECORDS MAINTENANCE 
The parties to this Agreement shall each maintain books, records, documents and other 
evidence which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs expended by 
either party in the performance of the services described herein. These records shall be 
subject to inspection, review or audit by personnel of both parties, other personnel duly 
authorized by either party, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal officials so authorized 
by law. All books, records, documents, and other material relevant to this Agreement will be 
retained for six years after expiration and the Office of the State Auditor, federal auditors, and 
any persons duly authorized by the parties shall have full access and the right to examine 
any of these materials during this period. 
 
Records and other documents, in any medium, furnished by one party to this agreement to 
the other party, will remain the property of the furnishing party, unless otherwise agreed. The 
receiving party will not disclose or make available this material to any third parties without 
first giving notice to the furnishing party and giving it a reasonable opportunity to respond. 
Each party will utilize reasonable security procedures and protections to assure that records 
and documents provided by the other party are not erroneously disclosed to third parties. 
 
RIGHTS IN DATA 
Unless otherwise provided, data which originates from this Agreement shall be "works for 
hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and shall be owned jointly. Data shall 
include, but not be limited to, reports, documents, pamphlets, advertisements, books 
magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes and/or sound reproductions. 
Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register and the ability to transfer these 
rights. 
 
SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Agreement or any provision of any document incorporated by 
reference shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this 
Agreement, which can be given effect without the invalid provision if such remainder 
conforms to the requirements of applicable law and the fundamental purpose of this 
agreement, and to this end the provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 
 
TERMINATION 
Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 30-days' prior written notification to the other 
party. If this Agreement is so terminated, the parties shall be liable only for performance 
rendered or costs incurred in accordance with the terms of this Agreement prior to the 
effective date of termination. 
 

91



Interlocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 
If for any cause, either party does not fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations 
under this Agreement, or if either party violates any of these terms and conditions, the 
aggrieved party will give the other party written notice of such failure or violation. The 
responsible party will be given the opportunity to correct the violation or failure within 15-
working days. If failure or violation is not corrected, this Agreement may be terminated 
immediately by written notice of the aggrieved party to the other. 
 
WAIVER 
A failure by either party to exercise its rights under this Agreement shall not preclude that 
party from subsequent exercise of such rights and shall not constitute a waiver of any other 
rights under this Agreement unless stated to be such in a writing signed by an authorized 
representative of the party and attached to the original Agreement. 
 
ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 
This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties. No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement. 
 
 
____________________________________           _____________________________________ 
SVC Authorized Signer (printed name)              Agency Authorized Signer (printed name) 
 
______________________________________           _____________________________________ 
Signature                                                         Signature 
 
______________________________            ______________________________ 
Title                                         Date                  Title                                          Date 
 
Skagit Valley College 
2405 East College Way 
Mount Vernon, WA 98273 
 
 
 
BUDGET ACCOUNT (required) __________________________________ 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Signature on file 
Assistant Attorney General 

 

92



Interlocal Agreement 
Approved 10/2014 

Note: The signature blocks on the contract must not appear on a page by 
themselves.  Some of the text of the contract should be included at the 
top of the page. 

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Tyler Technologies Agreement -
Tyler Cashiering Software

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize City Administrator to sign Sales Quotation Agreement with Tyler Technologies in the amount of
$36,345 plus an annual maintenance fee of $5,400.00.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Currently, the City Utilities Office uses a cashiering software named Quadrant which is a proprietary 
application operating as a stand-alone package.  While the Quadrant software has been useful for many
years, there are several areas of concern which have prompted the Finance Department to look for new
cashiering software:

1) The Quadrant software does not have the newer online features that is needed for our customers.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.f
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Tyler Technologies Agreement -
Tyler Cashiering Software

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize City Administrator to sign Sales Quotation Agreement with Tyler Technologies in the amount of 
$36,345 plus an annual maintenance fee of $5,400.00.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Currently, the City Utilities Office uses a cashiering software named Quadrant which is a proprietary 
application operating as a stand-alone package.  While the Quadrant software has been useful for many 
years, there are several areas of concern which have prompted the Finance Department to look for new 
cashiering software:

1) The Quadrant software does not have the newer online features that is needed for our customers.1) The Quadrant software does not have the newer online features that is needed for our customers.

2) The Quadrant software is very proprietary, meaning that one person owns the company and is the
only person who does system maintenance and support.  Finance is concerned that should the individual
retire or step away from the company, our cashiering software would no longer be supported.

3) Quadrant does not interface directly, and in a seamless manner, with our EDENs Financial System.  
This causes additional manual processes to input data which are inefficient and subject to manual input 
errors.

After reviewing other packages, the Finance Department has chosen to add Tyler's cashiering 
application.  Tyler, the parent company of EDENs, gives us enhanced reporting capabilities and other 
features which make it attractive.  In addition, the Tyler software is incorporated as an add-on 
component to our existing EDENs financial software.  Tyler cashiering will electronically interface with 
our financial software, thereby eliminating the duplicative manual input process we currently endure.

The agreement with Tyler Technologies is attached for your review.  The total software and training cost
is $29,700, hardware costs are $6,645, and the annual maintenance fee is $5,400.

1) The Quadrant software does not have the newer online features that is needed for our customers.

2) The Quadrant software is very proprietary, meaning that one person owns the company and is the
only person who does system maintenance and support.  Finance is concerned that should the individual 
retire or step away from the company, our cashiering software would no longer be supported.

3) Quadrant does not interface directly, and in a seamless manner, with our EDENs Financial System.
This causes additional manual processes to input data which are inefficient and subject to manual input 
errors.

After reviewing other packages, the Finance Department has chosen to add Tyler's cashiering 
application.  Tyler, the parent company of EDENs, gives us enhanced reporting capabilities and other 
features which make it attractive.  In addition, the Tyler software is incorporated as an add-on 
component to our existing EDENs financial software.  Tyler cashiering will electronically interface with 
our financial software, thereby eliminating the duplicative manual input process we currently endure.

The agreement with Tyler Technologies is attached for your review.  The total software and training cost 
is $29,700, hardware costs are $6,645, and the annual maintenance fee is $5,400.

122



LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The agreement with Tyler Technologies is attached for your review.  The total software and training cost 
is $29,700, hardware costs are $6,645, and the annual maintenance fee is $5,400.  The cost of the 
package will be shared with the four City utilities and with the General Fund.  There are budgeted funds 
for this software acquisition in the 2016 budget.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Sales Quotation for Cashiering Software plus Training and Hardware

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The agreement with Tyler Technologies is attached for your review.  The total software and training cost 
is $29,700, hardware costs are $6,645, and the annual maintenance fee is $5,400.  The cost of the 
package will be shared with the four City utilities and with the General Fund.  There are budgeted funds 
for this software acquisition in the 2016 budget.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Sales Quotation for Cashiering Software plus Training and Hardware

123

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457052795_at.pdf


Quoted By: Christina Hendrickson

Date: 02/10/2016

Quote Expiration: 03/31/2016

Quote Name: Tyler Cashiering

Quote Number: 45736

Sales Quotation For: 
Chastity Webster
City of Oak Harbor
865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor, WA 98277

Phone: (360) 279-4534

Fax: (360) 279-4507

Email:

1 Software 
Model # Description Quantity Price Extended

Price
Discount Software Total

OF-CASH-SW-E Tyler Cashiering - Software 1.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $7,500.00 $22,500.00

Total:
$7,500.00

Total:
$22,500.00

2 Services

Training 

Model # Description Quantity Price Extended
Price

Discount Training Total

OF-CASH-CS-E Tyler Cashiering - Consulting 1.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $1,200.00

OF-CASH-TR-E Tyler Cashiering - Training 5.00 $1,200.00 $6,000.00 $0.00 $6,000.00

Total:
$7,200.00

Total
Other

Services:
$0.00

Total
Consulting:

$0.00

Total
Training:

$7,200.00

Total
Conversion

Services:
$0.00

Total
Services:

$7,200.00

Total Training
Days: 6

Total
Consulting

Days: 0

3 Maintenance 
Model # Description Quantity Price Extended

Price
Discount Maintenance Total

OF-CASH-SP-E Tyler Cashiering - Support 1.00 $5,400.00 $5,400.00 $0.00 $5,400.00

Total:
$0.00

Total:
$5,400.00

4 Hardware 
Model # Description Quantity Price Extended

Price
Discount Hardware Total

MISC-EDEN-DHW-001 TM-S9000 - Receipt Printer 3.00 $1,600.00 $4,800.00 $0.00 $4,800.00

MISC-EDEN-HDW-002 Honeywell 1900-Barcode Scanner 3.00 $385.00 $1,155.00 $0.00 $1,155.00

VAR-CASH-HDW-3607-ED Cash Drawer 3.00 $230.00 $690.00 $0.00 $690.00

City of Oak Harbor Page 1 of 2

124



Total:
$0.00

Total:
$6,645.00

Summary Fees Maintenance

Total Software $22,500.00 $5,400.00 
Total Services $7,200.00 
Total Hardware $6,645.00 
Summary Total $36,345.00 $5,400.00

Comments 
Tyler’s quote contains estimates of the amount of services needed, based on our preliminary understanding of the size and scope of your
project. The actual amount of services depends on such factors as your level of involvement in the project and the speed of knowledge
transfer.

Prices submitted in the quote do not include travel expenses incurred in accordance with Tyler’s then-current Business Travel Policy.

Tyler’s prices do not include applicable local, city or federal sales, use, excise, personal property or other similar taxes or duties, which you
are responsible for determining and remitting.

In the event Client cancels services less than two (2) weeks in advance, Client is liable to Tyler for (i) all non-refundable expenses incurred
by Tyler on Client’s behalf; and (ii) daily fees associated with the canceled services if Tyler is unable to re-assign its personnel.

For existing EDEN Clients, the fees are billed as follows:

- 100% of Application Software License Fees upon delivery of the software products

- 100%of the Year 1 Application Software Maintenance Fees are billed upon Initiation (first day of training)

- 100% of the Third Party Product License Fees/Purchase Price upon delivery of the third party products

- 100% of the Year 1 Third Party Product Maintenance Fees upon delivery of the third party products

- Services and associated expenses as provided/incurred.

Payment is due within 30 days of invoice receipt. Quote is subject to existing Contract.

Customer Approval: _______________________ Date: _______________________

Print Name: _______________________ P.O. #: _______________________

All primary values quoted in US Dollars

City of Oak Harbor Page 2 of 2

125



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization - Police 
Department Copier

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to install a copier at the 
Police Department in the amount of $423.37 a month.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The current copier at the Police Department is slow and greatly diminishes their productivity level.  
Therefore, staff requested pricing from Xerox, who is our existing vendor, for a more robust machine that
will support the needs of the Police Department staff.

It was determined that a WorkCentre 7970 full color workflow solution would suit their needs.  The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.g
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization - Police 
Department Copier

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to install a copier at the 
Police Department in the amount of $423.37 a month.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The current copier at the Police Department is slow and greatly diminishes their productivity level.  
Therefore, staff requested pricing from Xerox, who is our existing vendor, for a more robust machine that 
will support the needs of the Police Department staff.

It was determined that a WorkCentre 7970 full color workflow solution would suit their needs.  The It was determined that a WorkCentre 7970 full color workflow solution would suit their needs.  The 
increase in cost will be $66.98 more a month.  Funds are available to cover the increase in cost.

Xerox has provided the City excellent service and having compatibility of supplies throughout the City has 
been a tremendous help when in need. 

Therefore, staff is proposing to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to upgrade the copier at the 
Police Department in the amount of $423.37 a month.     

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

It was determined that a WorkCentre 7970 full color workflow solution would suit their needs.  The 
increase in cost will be $66.98 more a month.  Funds are available to cover the increase in cost.

Xerox has provided the City excellent service and having compatibility of supplies throughout the City has 
been a tremendous help when in need. 

Therefore, staff is proposing to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to upgrade the copier at the 
Police Department in the amount of $423.37 a month.     

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

126



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Janitorial Contract Services 
Extension

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to extend the current janitorial contract with A-1 Performance Inc. in the 
amount of $36,888.60. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City utilizes a professional janitorial service to provide general cleaning of City Hall, Police 
Department, Senior Center and the Public Works Department buildings.  By contracting with one 
company the City has been able to lower the overall cost for these services.   

In March of 2014, staff brought forward the desire to utilize contract number 00508 as provided by the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.h
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Janitorial Contract Services 
Extension

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize staff to extend the current janitorial contract with A-1 Performance Inc. in the 
amount of $36,888.60. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City utilizes a professional janitorial service to provide general cleaning of City Hall, Police 
Department, Senior Center and the Public Works Department buildings.  By contracting with one 
company the City has been able to lower the overall cost for these services.   

In March of 2014, staff brought forward the desire to utilize contract number 00508 as provided by the In March of 2014, staff brought forward the desire to utilize contract number 00508 as provided by the 
Washington State Department of Enterprise Services.  The contract is designed to streamline the process 
for janitorial services.  They have a pre-qualified list of vendors that have been thoroughly screened, 
background checked, reference checked, etc.  

By utilizing this State contract, the City benefitted by having extremely competitive pricing, a large pool of
pre-qualified vendors to handle any size job, MWBE participation and flexibility.  The process was easy
and took very little staff time because the State prepared the request for qualifications based on our needs
and expectations and evaluated the results. 

The term of the contract was one year with the option to renew for nine consecutive years.  It is now time 
to renew the contract.  

Therefore, staff is proposing that we extend the current contract with A-1 Performance, Inc. for another
year.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

In March of 2014, staff brought forward the desire to utilize contract number 00508 as provided by the 
Washington State Department of Enterprise Services.  The contract is designed to streamline the process 
for janitorial services.  They have a pre-qualified list of vendors that have been thoroughly screened, 
background checked, reference checked, etc.  

By utilizing this State contract, the City benefitted by having extremely competitive pricing, a large pool of 
pre-qualified vendors to handle any size job, MWBE participation and flexibility.  The process was easy 
and took very little staff time because the State prepared the request for qualifications based on our needs 
and expectations and evaluated the results. 

The term of the contract was one year with the option to renew for nine consecutive years.  It is now time 
to renew the contract.  

Therefore, staff is proposing that we extend the current contract with A-1 Performance, Inc. for another 
year.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

127



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Master Contract
2. Extension Letter 2016

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Master Contract
2. Extension Letter 2016

128

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457720125_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457720151_at.pdf


129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



March 11, 2016 

Doug Fraley 
A-1 Performance Inc. 
620 W. Scott Street 
Aberdeen, WA  98520 

Dear Doug: 

Work Contract # 00508 for janitorial services has expired as of February 28, 2016. 

Under the automatic extension option, we are extending Work Contract #00508 for 12 (twelve) months from the date of 

this letter.  The extension is subject to prevailing and minimum wage increases, existing terms, conditions and 

specifications.  The monthly contract amount will continue to be $3,074.05.  

Should you have any questions please call me at (360) 279-4757 or email me at splace@oakharbor.org.  Thank you for 

your continued interest in doing business with the City of Oak Harbor. 

Sincerely, 

Sandra Place 
Budget & Purchasing Specialist 
City of Oak Harbor 
360-279-4757 
splace@oakharbor.org 

171



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Prothman PSA: HR Director 
Recruitment

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman. City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Prothman Company in the amount of 
$18,500 plus expenses.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City currently desires to retain the services of Prothman Company, an executive recruitment firm 
specializing in governmental agencies, to conduct the recruitment and placement process for the hiring of
the next HR Director for the City of Oak Harbor.  The professional fee of $18,500, plus direct 
expenses, includes all meetings between Prothman and City representatives, advertising the position, 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.i
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Prothman PSA: HR Director 
Recruitment

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman. City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Prothman Company in the amount of 
$18,500 plus expenses.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City currently desires to retain the services of Prothman Company, an executive recruitment firm 
specializing in governmental agencies, to conduct the recruitment and placement process for the hiring of 
the next HR Director for the City of Oak Harbor.  The professional fee of $18,500, plus direct 
expenses, includes all meetings between Prothman and City representatives, advertising the position, expenses, includes all meetings between Prothman and City representatives, advertising the position, 
developing candidate profiles, conducting interviews, and performing reference checks.  The City has 
contracted with the Prothman Company in previous years for recruitment services, typically when the City
is hiring a department head position, or when staffing levels are constrained to such a degree that such an
in-depth recruitment is not reasonably possible.  In this case, the City will be recruiting for the very 
position which typically manages and directs senior level positions.

The attached proposal for recruitment services outlines Prothman's background, the scope of the 
assignment, the cost including incidental expenses, and a guarantee of services for a period of one year.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this agreement includes the following:

1) A professional fee of $18,500

2) Reimbursement to Prothman for expenses incurred for advertising, announcements, materials, travel 
time, and background checks.  The estimate for this component is $4,000.

expenses, includes all meetings between Prothman and City representatives, advertising the position, 
developing candidate profiles, conducting interviews, and performing reference checks.  The City has 
contracted with the Prothman Company in previous years for recruitment services, typically when the City 
is hiring a department head position, or when staffing levels are constrained to such a degree that such an 
in-depth recruitment is not reasonably possible.  In this case, the City will be recruiting for the very 
position which typically manages and directs senior level positions.

The attached proposal for recruitment services outlines Prothman's background, the scope of the 
assignment, the cost including incidental expenses, and a guarantee of services for a period of one year.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this agreement includes the following:

1) A professional fee of $18,500

2) Reimbursement to Prothman for expenses incurred for advertising, announcements, materials, travel 
time, and background checks.  The estimate for this component is $4,000.

172



The funding for this recruitment will come from the existing 2016 HR Budget.  During the recruitment 
period, the HR Director position will be vacant for a period of approximately 10-11 weeks.  The salary 
and benefits savings for this vacant period is approximately $28,000 which will more than cover the cost 
of the position recruitment.  Duties currently performed by the HR Director will be covered by other 
staff.  Should the City require additional services of an interim HR Director during the vacancy period, a 
separate agreement with Prothman may be exercised.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proposal for Recruitment Services - Prothman

The funding for this recruitment will come from the existing 2016 HR Budget.  During the recruitment 
period, the HR Director position will be vacant for a period of approximately 10-11 weeks.  The salary 
and benefits savings for this vacant period is approximately $28,000 which will more than cover the cost 
of the position recruitment.  Duties currently performed by the HR Director will be covered by other 
staff.  Should the City require additional services of an interim HR Director during the vacancy period, a 
separate agreement with Prothman may be exercised.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Proposal for Recruitment Services - Prothman

173

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457114738_at.pdf


Proposal  
to provide recruitment services 

for Oak Harbor's next 
Human Resources Director 

Presented by 

174



 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS  
 
 

 

ABOUT PROTHMAN 
 

Prothman Company is a northwest based consulting firm that specializes in providing 
national and regional executive recruitment services to cities, counties, and other 
governmental agencies throughout the western United States.  Founded and incorporated 
in Seattle in 2001, Prothman has quickly become an industry leader known and respected 
for outstanding customer service, quality candidate pools, and knowledge of local 
government.   
 

OUR EXPERTISE 
 

Recruitment Knowledge and Experience: The Prothman team has conducted over 450 
recruitments and interim placements.  We have read and screened over 15,000 resumes, 
and we have personally interviewed over 5,000 semifinalist candidates. We know how to 
read between the lines, filter the fluff, and drill down to the qualities and experiences 
required to be a good manager. 

 

Firsthand Knowledge of Local Government: Every Prothman team member has worked 
in local government. Our talented consultants have a cumulative 150 years in local 
government service, with expertise ranging from organization management, police and fire 
management, human resources, finance, public works and elected official public service. 
 

OUR PROVEN PROCESS 
 

Clients and candidates continually tell us that we have the best process and client service 
in the industry.  The tenure of our placements is among the best in the industry because 
we understand that "fit" is the most important part of the process; not just fit within the 
organization, but fit within the community as well.   

 
CONTACT INFORMATION 
 

Sonja Prothman:  sonja@prothman.com, 206.605.0415 cell 
371 NE Gilman Blvd, Suite 350, Issaquah, WA  98065 
Submittal Date:  February 24, 2016  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

175



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - EXPERIENCE 
 
 

Current Recruitments  
 

City of Renton, WA - HR Director 
City of Lynwood, WA - HR Director 
City of Vancouver, WA - Deputy HR Director 
City of Port Angeles, WA - Planning Manager 
Lincoln County, OR - Personnel Director 
Jefferson County, OR - Health Director 
Hood River County, OR - County Administrator 
Sheridan, WY - City Administrator 
Minot, ND - Planning Director 
City of Woodland, WA - City Administrator 
City of Chehalis, WA - City Manager 
City of Vancouver, WA - Asst. City Manager 
Ben Franklin Transit, WA - General Manager 
Island Transit, WA - Executive Director 
Bonner County, ID - Planning Director 
City of Bellingham, WA - City Engineer 
City of Nampa, ID - City Engineer 
City of Burlington, WA - Fire Chief 
 
 
 

Past Recruitments & References  
 
City of Snoqualmie, WA - Finance Director, Fire Chief, Community Development Dir. 
Contact - City Administrator, Bob Larson - 425.888.1555 
 
City of Bothell, WA - Asst. City Manager, Police & Fire Chiefs, HR & PW Directors, Parks Dir. 
Contact - City Manager, Bob Stowe - 425.486.3256 
 
City of Vancouver, WA - Asst. City Manager, HR Director, Parks & Rec Director, Budget Manager 
Contact - Deputy City Manager, Dave Mercier - 360.487.8610 
 
City of Pasco, WA - City Manager, Finance Director 
Contact - City Manager, Dave Zabell - 509.834.9343 
 
City of Shoreline, WA - City Attorney, Parks & Rec Director, City Manager 
Contact - HR Director, Paula Itaoka - 206.801.2241 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

176



 

Availability, Communication & Schedule  
 
 

One of our first tasks will be to coordinate and commit a schedule.  Then, we protect your dates 
on a master schedule to assure we never miss a commitment. Our recruitments take 
approximately 12-15 weeks to complete, depending on the scope and direction from the client.  
You can expect approximately:  2-3 weeks for stakeholder interviews and profile development & 
approval, 6 weeks for recruitment, 2-3 weeks for screening and interviewing, 2-3 weeks for 
coordinating final interviews.   
  
Sample Schedule  
 

 
 

Date Topic 

Weeks of Feb 29 & March 7, 2016 
Work schedule, profile, and hold stakeholder 
interviews; via phone or Prothman travels to 
Oak Harbor 

March 14, 2016 Send profile for review 

March 16, 2016 Post profile and start advertising 

April 24, 2016 Application Close Date 

Weeks of April 25 & May 2, 2016 Prothman screens applications & interviews top  
10 - 15 candidates 

Week of May 9, 2016 
Work Session to review semi-finalists and pick 
finalist; via phone or Prothman travels to Oak 
Harbor 

Week of May 23, 2016 Final Interview Process; Prothman travels to 
Oak Harbor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

177



 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS - PROJECT TEAM 
 
 

BILL MCDONALD - PROJECT LEAD  
Bill has been associated with the Prothman team for nearly 15 years and brings 42 years of 
experience in local government in Washington and Oregon. With nearly 30 years experience as 
a City Manager/Administrator, his past service includes City Manager, Puyallup, WA, City 
Administrator, DuPont WA, City Manager Snohomish, WA and Clatskanie OR, County 
Commissioner Columbia County OR, Assistant to the City Manager, Milwaukie OR, Criminal 
Justice Planner in Clackamas OR, and CRAG (now METRO).   Bill has an MPA from Portland 
State University; awards include the 2010 Excellence Award from the Washington City County 
Management Association. 
 
JOHN HODGSON - PROJECT SUPPORT 
John is a senior consultant for Prothman and brings 33 years of municipal service including, 
most recently, 7 ½ years as City Administrator/Chief Administrative Officer for the City of Kent, 
the sixth largest city in the state of Washington. Prior to that, John had 26 years in parks and 
recreation management for the cities of Vancouver, WA, Metropolitan Park District of Tacoma, 
and Director of Parks, Recreation and Community Services for the City of Kent from 1994-2005.   
John served as president of the Kiwanis Club of Kent, president of Washington Recreation and 
Parks Association (WRPA), president of the Regional Council of the National Recreation and 
Parks Association (NRPA), and is founder and current president of the Kent Parks Foundation.  
John has a Bachelor of Science degree in Parks and Recreation Management from the 
University of Oregon (1980) and completed the Cascade Management Series from the 
University of Washington Graduate School of Public Affairs (1992). 
 

SONJA PROTHMAN - PROJECT SUPPORT 
As Vice-President of the Prothman Company, Sonja assists with recruitments and 
organizational assessments, and she manages the support staff and the "business" side of 
Prothman.  Sonja is a former councilmember for the City of Normandy Park and brings to 
Prothman the “elected official” side of city government—an invaluable perspective for 
understanding our clients’ needs.  Sonja also brings private sector expertise having worked with 
the Boeing Company where she was on the start-up team as lead negotiator for schedules and 
deliverables for the first 777 composite empennage.  A Seattle native, Sonja earned a 
Bachelor’s Degree in Communications from the University of Washington.  
 
BARRY GASKINS - PROJECT SUPPORT 
Barry Gaskins is responsible for candidate management.  His attention to detail and 
understanding of timeliness to the customer and candidates is remarkable.  Barry works with the 
lead consultant in following through with scheduling interviews, arranging candidate travel, 
managing candidate application packets, and assembly of candidate information to give to the 
client.  Barry came to us from the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation where he served as a 
Program Assistant for four years in the US Library Program.  Barry earned his Bachelor’s 
Degree from California State University in Los Angeles.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

178



 

Recruitment Strategy  
 

Every recruitment we conduct is a national search. We have an aggressive national advertising 
campaign and we have the ability to mail the job announcement to every city, county, district, 
etc. in the US.  Screening for "fit" is one of the most important elements in a recruitment.  What 
sets us apart from our competition is that we know this region... our office is in Washington and 
we specialize in the western states. The length of tenure of our placed candidates is the highest 
in the industry because we specialize in the northwest and we understand the qualities required 
for candidates to fit within our unique communities, cultures and weather! 
 
We have conducted hundreds of successful executive searches and refined our process along 
the way.  We provide the process, but you call the shots... whether you want weekly updates or 
monthly updates, more meetings or less meetings... we tailor every recruitment to meet your 
needs.  We will partner with you and find you a highly qualified candidate who is the perfect "fit" 
for your organization, guaranteed! 
 
Sourcing & Screening Recruitment Process  
 

Project Review 
The first step will be to review the following topics: 

♦ Review the scope of work and project schedule 
♦ Identify the geographic scope of the search (local, regional or national) 
♦ Review the compensation package and decide if a salary survey is needed 
♦ Identify key stakeholders 

 
Information Gathering and Research (Soliciting Input) 

We will travel to Oak Harbor or via phone conference, we will spend as much time as 
it takes to learn everything we can about your organization.  Our goal is to thoroughly 
understand the values and culture of Oak Harbor, as well as the preferred qualifications you 
desire in your next HR Director.  We will: 

♦ Meet with City Administrator 
♦ Meet with staff  as directed 
♦ Review all documents related to the position 

 

Position Profile Development (Identifying the Ideal Candidate) 
We will develop a profile of your ideal candidate.  Once the Position Profile is written and 
approved, it will serve as the foundation for our determination of a candidate’s "fit" within the 
organization and community.  Profiles include the following: 
 

♦ A description of the ideal candidate’s qualifications  
 Years of related experience and education required 
 Ideal personality traits and work habits 

♦ Organization-specific information 
 Description of the organization, position and key responsibilities 
 Priorities and challenges facing the organization  

♦ Community-specific information 
 Overview of the region 
 Description of the environment and quality of life details  

♦ Compensation package details 
♦ Information on how to apply 

179



 

Recruitment and Advertising Strategy (Locating Qualified Candidates) 
We recognize that often the best candidates are not actively looking for a new position--this 
is the person we want to reach and recruit.  We have an aggressive recruitment strategy 
which involves the following: 
 

♦ Print and Internet-based Ads placed nationally in professional publications, 
journals and on related websites. 

♦ Direct Mail Recruitment Brochures sent directly to hundreds of highly qualified 
city/county HR professionals who are not actively searching for a new position. 

♦ Direct Contact Calls placed directly to city/county HR professionals we know 
will be a good fit. 

♦ Posting the Position Profile on the Prothman Website, which receives 
thousands of hits per month. 

 

Candidate Screening (Narrowing the Field) 
Once the application deadline has passed, we will conduct an extensive candidate review 
designed to gather detailed information on the leading candidates.  The screening process 
has 4 key steps: 

1) Application Review: We will screen the candidates for qualifications based on 
the resumes, applications, and supplemental questions (to determine a 
candidate’s writing skills, analytical abilities and communication style). After the 
initial screening, we take the yes and maybe's and complete a second screening 
where we take a much deeper look into the training, work history and 
qualifications of each candidate. 

2) Personal Interviews: We will conduct in-depth videoconference or in-person 
interviews with the top 8 to 12 candidates.  During the interviews, we ask the 
technical questions to gage their competency, and just as importantly, we design 
our interviews to measure the candidate's fit within your organization.   

3) Internet Publication Background Search:  We conduct an internet publication 
search on all semi-finalist candidates prior to their interviews.   

4) Work Session:  We will prepare a detailed summary report and send you 
binders which include each candidate's application materials and the results of 
the personal interviews and publication search. We will meet with you via 
conference call or travel to Oak Harbor and advise you of the candidates 
meeting the qualifications, our knowledge of them, and their strengths and 
weaknesses relative to fit within your organization.  We will give you our 
recommendations and then work with you to identify the top 3 to 5 candidates to 
invite to the final interviews.   
 

Final Interview Process (Selecting the Right Candidate) 
The design of the final interviews is an integral component towards making sure that all 
stakeholders have the opportunity to learn as much as possible about each candidate.   

♦ Elements of the design process include: 
 Deciding on the Structure of the Interviews 

We will tailor the interview process to fit your needs.  It may involve using 
various interview panels (which can include community stakeholders), a 
public evening reception or one-on-one interviews with the decision makers. 

 Deciding on Candidate Travel Expenses 
We will help you identify which expenses your organization wishes to cover. 

 Identifying Interview Panel Participants & Panel Facilitators  
We will work with you to identify the participants of different interview panels 
to ensure that all stakeholders identified have been represented.  
 

 
 
 

180



 

♦ Background Checks  
Prior to the final interviews, we will conduct a background check on each of the 
finalist candidates.  Background checks include the following: 
 References   

We conduct 4-5 reference checks on each candidate. We ask each candidate 
to provide names of their supervisors, subordinates and peers for the last 
several years.    

 Education Verification, Criminal History, Driving Record and Sex 
Offender Check 
We contract with Sterling for all driving record, education verification, criminal 
history, and sex offender checks.    

♦ Candidate Travel Coordination  
For those candidates who will be traveling to the final interviews, we work with 
the candidates to organize the most cost effective travel arrangements.   
 

♦ Final Interview Binders  
We will provide Final Interview Binders. They are the tool that keeps the final 
interview process organized and ensures that all interviewers are “on the same 
page” when it comes to evaluating each candidate.     

♦ Final Interviews with Candidates 
We will travel to Oak Harbor and facilitate the interviews.  The interview 
process usually begins with a morning briefing where schedule and process will 
be discussed with all those involved in the interviews. Each candidate will then 
go through a series of one hour interview sessions, with an hour break for lunch.  
 

♦ Panelist & Decision Makers Debrief:  After the interviews are complete, we will 
facilitate a debrief with all panel participants where the panel facilitators will 
report the panel's view of the strengths and weaknesses of each candidate 
interviewed.  The decision makers will also have an opportunity to ask panelists 
questions. 
 

♦ Candidate Evaluation Session: After the debrief we will facilitate the evaluation 
process, help the decision makers come to consensus, discuss next steps, and 
organize any additional candidate referencing or research if needed. 
 

♦ Facilitate Employment Agreement:  Once the top candidate has been selected, 
we will offer any assistance needed in developing a letter of offer and negotiating 
terms of the employment agreement. 
 

Warranty 
 

♦ Repeat the Recruitment:  Should a top candidate not be chosen, we will repeat 
the recruitment with no additional professional fee, the only cost to you would be 
the expenses.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

181



 

FEE, EXPENSES & GUARANTEE  
 

 
Professional Fee 
 

The fee for conducting an HR Director Recruitment with a one year guarantee is $18,500, 
plus expenses.  The professional fee covers all Prothman consultant and staff time required to 
conduct the recruitment.  This includes all correspondence and on-site meetings with the client, 
writing and placing the recruitment ads, development of the candidate profile, creating and 
sending invitation letters, reviewing resumes, coordinating and conducting semifinalist 
interviews, coordinating and attending finalist interviews, coordinating candidate travel, 
professional reference checks on the finalist candidate and all other search related tasks 
required to successfully complete the recruitment.   
 
Expenses   

Expenses vary depending on the design of the recruitment. We work diligently to keep 
expenses at a minimum and keep records of all expenditures.  Oak Harbor will be responsible 
for reimbursing expenses Prothman incurs on your behalf.  Expense items include but are not 
limited to: 
 Newspaper, trade journal, websites and other advertising (approx. $1,000 - 1,500) 
 Direct mail announcements (approx. $1,100 - 1,600) 
 Interview Binders & printing of materials (approx. $350 - 600) 
 Delivery expenses for Interview Binders (approx. $75 - 150) 
 Consultant travel: Mileage at current IRS rate, travel time @ $60 per hour  
 Background checks performed by Sterling (approx. $175 per candidate)    
 Any client-required licenses, fees or taxes 

 
 Candidate travel:  We cannot approximate candidate travel expenses because they vary 

depending on the number of candidates, how far the candidates travel, length of stay, if 
spouses are included, etc.  If you wish, we will coordinate and forward to your organization 
the candidate's travel receipts for direct reimbursement to the candidate.  

 
A 3% charge will be added to all expenses which reflect our City of Issaquah and State B&O tax 
obligations on every dollar we invoice for. Professional fees are billed in two equal installments, 
one at the beginning and one at the completion. Expenses are billed monthly. 

 
Guarantee 
 

Our record of success in placing highly qualified candidates provides that Prothman will 
guarantee with a full recruitment that if the selected finalist is terminated or resigns within one 
year from the employment date, we will conduct a replacement search with no additional 
professional fee, your only cost would be the expenses.   
 
Cancellation 
 

You have the right to cancel the search at any time.  Your only obligation would be the fees and 
expenses incurred prior to cancellation. 
 

182



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Engineering Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the bi-monthly Report.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular meeting update on the Clean Water Facility Project requested by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Engineering Department

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review the bi-monthly Report.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular meeting update on the Clean Water Facility Project requested by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 3/15/2016 Report

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 3/15/2016 Report

183

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457567550_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 15, 2016 
1 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – March 15, 2016     
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

• Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation) 
• Started installing sheet piles 
• Started installing the PSE underground powerline 

• Concrete package design completed –Working on GMP #7 
 

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B 

• Continue installing sheet piles 
• Starting excavation of cofferdam 
• Underground powerline 

• Proceed with development of the Windjammer Park Integration Plan 
• Held  for CAG meeting #3 on March 8th 

 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers is completing the 90% design drawings 
for the process structures associated with the treatment 
plant. 

90% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 30%. 30% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance and Community room 
are at approximately 30%. 

30% 

 
CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete.  
Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Preliminary work has begun on Site Preparation Package C.  
Work will include micro-piles in the bottom of the deep 
excavation and installation of a tower crane 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 
Bioreactors and Aeration Basins has been completed.  
Hoffman is currently preparing a cost estimate for the 
proposed work.  KBA is providing cost validation. 

Completed 

 
  

184



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 15, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Foundation permit 
 

• Site Plan Amendment 

• Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 
foundation permit. 

• The design team submitted the  revised the site plan submittal to 
reflect Concept B. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun – Driving 
sheet piles 

May 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Reviewing shop drawings and preparing for 
extension of effluent outfall 

July 2016 

 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 

185



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 15, 2016 
3 

 

September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% design for the 
process buildings is expected in April. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 
The Council approved the  2016 CWSRF agreement and awaiting  signature from 
DOE 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On January 21, 2016 we received news that the CWF is on the 2017 proposed 
funding list for an additional $42,632,742 in SRF Loans at an interest rate of 
1.6%.  The final approved list comes from the state legislature and typically 
occurs around July. 

Bonds The City is actively pursuing issuance of bonds. 

Rates Staff is working with HDR on an update to the rates based on current funding and 
cost information. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant 

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program.  Staff has applied for grant reimbursement 

Bond Anticipation Note Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 
a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 
Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 
through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 
signage and regular mailers at major milestones. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

The project team is preparing for the fourth Citizen Advisory Group meeting. 

 
  

186



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  March 15, 2016 
4 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

 

We are here 

187

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-
2018 Wastewater Rates

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Hold a public hearing.

2) Adopt Ordinance No. 1760

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
With the construction of the new Clean Water Facility, the City desires to adjust sewer rates to cover the 
operational costs, the funding of the construction, and the related debt service payments.  Five years ago, 
City Council adopted a 5-year rate plan to gradually increase sewer rates with the purpose of 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.a
Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-
2018 Wastewater Rates

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Hold a public hearing.

2) Adopt Ordinance No. 1760

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
With the construction of the new Clean Water Facility, the City desires to adjust sewer rates to cover the 
operational costs, the funding of the construction, and the related debt service payments.  Five years ago, 
City Council adopted a 5-year rate plan to gradually increase sewer rates with the purpose of City Council adopted a 5-year rate plan to gradually increase sewer rates with the purpose of 
accumulating approximately $15 million in cash as the City's "down payment" to applied against the cost
of the plant construction.  The fifth and final annual rate increase of the previous 5-year rate plan occurred 
on December 20, 2015.  The current single family home sewer rate is $64.75 per month.  To date, the 
previous 5-year plan has generated approximately $12 million ( we are currently only 4 years into the 5
year collection period).

At the time of the preparation of this agenda bill, Shawn Koorn of HDR Engineering is continuing to work 
with City staff to complete the rate calculations to be implemented for fiscal years 2017 and 2018.  While 
the first of the proposed rates will not be implemented until December of 2016, it is advantageous for the 
City to set the projected rates at this time to show our bond rating agency, Standard & Poors, that the 
City Council is committed to maintaining the fiscal sustainability of the Wastewater Fund #402.  This will
assist staff in achieving the highest bond rating possible during their negotiations with Standard & Poors 
later this month.

The final draft of the Ordinance and the presentation of rate information is still will still be in process at the 
time of preparation of this agenda bill.  The final projections and proposed ordinance will be prepared 
and delivered to City Council at the time of March 15th meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City Council adopted a 5-year rate plan to gradually increase sewer rates with the purpose of 
accumulating approximately $15 million in cash as the City's "down payment" to applied against the cost 
of the plant construction.  The fifth and final annual rate increase of the previous 5-year rate plan occurred 
on December 20, 2015.  The current single family home sewer rate is $64.75 per month.  To date, the 
previous 5-year plan has generated approximately $12 million ( we are currently only 4 years into the 5-
year collection period).

At the time of the preparation of this agenda bill, Shawn Koorn of HDR Engineering is continuing to work 
with City staff to complete the rate calculations to be implemented for fiscal years 2017 and 2018.  While 
the first of the proposed rates will not be implemented until December of 2016, it is advantageous for the 
City to set the projected rates at this time to show our bond rating agency, Standard & Poors, that the 
City Council is committed to maintaining the fiscal sustainability of the Wastewater Fund #402.  This will 
assist staff in achieving the highest bond rating possible during their negotiations with Standard & Poors 
later this month.

The final draft of the Ordinance and the presentation of rate information is still will still be in process at the 
time of preparation of this agenda bill.  The final projections and proposed ordinance will be prepared 
and delivered to City Council at the time of March 15th meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

188



FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

189



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd 
Avenue Properties Rezoning

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Conduct the public hearing.

Adopt Ordinance No. 1758, approving the rezoning of three properties on SW 3rd Street from R-1, 
Single Family Residential to R-2, Limited Multifamily Residential.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents an ordinance to rezone[1] three properties located on SW 3rd Street from R-
Single Family Residential to R-2 Limited Multifamily Residential.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: March 15, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd 
Avenue Properties Rezoning

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Conduct the public hearing.

Adopt Ordinance No. 1758, approving the rezoning of three properties on SW 3rd Street from R-1, 
Single Family Residential to R-2, Limited Multifamily Residential.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents an ordinance to rezone[1] three properties located on SW 3rd Street from R-1 
Single Family Residential to R-2 Limited Multifamily Residential.Single Family Residential to R-2 Limited Multifamily Residential.

Three properties are included in this rezoning proposal.  Two of the properties are owned by Valley High
Investments and one is owned by the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD).  One of the properties 
owned by the Valley High has a single family residence on it while the other properties are currently 
vacant.  The property owned by the OHSD provides access to the middle school and lies south and 
adjacent to the properties.   

The properties were included on the 2015 Comprehensive Plan amendment docket for a land use map 
amendment.  The City Council approved the change in land use designation from Low Density Residential
to Medium Density Residential on December 1, 2015. A change in land use designation does not 
automatically change the zoning designation.  Therefore, this rezoning effort is necessary to implement the 
2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  

REVIEW PROCESS AND CRITERA

Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) Section 18.20.270 establishes that rezones made in conjunction
with yearly updates to the Comprehensive Plan are Review Process V decisions, which are legislative in
nature.  The review criteria found in OHMC Chapter 19.75, Map Amendments and Contract Rezones, 
may be used to review the proposed legislative rezoning. Staff reviewed the proposed rezonings against
the applicable criteria and presented that review in the Planning Commission report of February 23, 2016 

Single Family Residential to R-2 Limited Multifamily Residential.

Three properties are included in this rezoning proposal.  Two of the properties are owned by Valley High 
Investments and one is owned by the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD).  One of the properties 
owned by the Valley High has a single family residence on it while the other properties are currently 
vacant.  The property owned by the OHSD provides access to the middle school and lies south and 
adjacent to the properties.   

The properties were included on the 2015 Comprehensive Plan amendment docket for a land use map 
amendment.  The City Council approved the change in land use designation from Low Density Residential 
to Medium Density Residential on December 1, 2015. A change in land use designation does not 
automatically change the zoning designation.  Therefore, this rezoning effort is necessary to implement the 
2015 Comprehensive Plan Amendments.  

REVIEW PROCESS AND CRITERA

Oak Harbor Municipal Code (OHMC) Section 18.20.270 establishes that rezones made in conjunction 
with yearly updates to the Comprehensive Plan are Review Process V decisions, which are legislative in 
nature.  The review criteria found in OHMC Chapter 19.75, Map Amendments and Contract Rezones, 
may be used to review the proposed legislative rezoning. Staff reviewed the proposed rezonings against 
the applicable criteria and presented that review in the Planning Commission report of February 23, 2016 

190

6.b



(Attachment 1).

[1]Please note the proposed rezoning is a legislative action (and not a quasi-judicial action) because it 
implements a Comprehensive Plan land use map amendment (see OHMC 18.20270(1) and (2)(a)).

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The authority to establish land use control is provided by Chapter 36.70A.040.  The Growth 
Management Act requires the City to plan and to have development regulations (as defined by RCW 
36.70A.040) that are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the proposed rezoning on February 23, 2016 in
accordance with OHMC 18.20.270 (1).  At the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning 
Commission recommended to the City Council approval of the proposed rezoning.  The minutes from 
that meeting are included as Attachment 2.

(Attachment 1).

[1]Please note the proposed rezoning is a legislative action (and not a quasi-judicial action) because it 
implements a Comprehensive Plan land use map amendment (see OHMC 18.20270(1) and (2)(a)).

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The authority to establish land use control is provided by Chapter 36.70A.040.  The Growth 
Management Act requires the City to plan and to have development regulations (as defined by RCW 
36.70A.040) that are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on the proposed rezoning on February 23, 2016 in 
accordance with OHMC 18.20.270 (1).  At the conclusion of the public hearing the Planning 
Commission recommended to the City Council approval of the proposed rezoning.  The minutes from 
that meeting are included as Attachment 2.that meeting are included as Attachment 2. 

CITY COUNCIL REVIEW

Review Process V decisions are those that require a legislative decision by the City Council.  Per OHMC 
18.20.270(1) the City Council may conduct a public hearing on theses legislative matters.  Since the City
Council has historically done so, this item has been advertised as a public hearing.  At the conclusion of 
the public hearing it is recommended that the City Council approve the change in zoning for the properties 
from R-1, Single Family Residential to R-2, Limited Multifamily Residential.  A draft ordinance is 
provided that will change the site’s zoning and amend the zoning map as necessary (Attachment 3).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission report dated February 23, 2016
2. Minutes from February 23, 2016 Planning Commission meeting
3. Ordinance No. 1758

that meeting are included as Attachment 2. 

CITY COUNCIL REVIEW

Review Process V decisions are those that require a legislative decision by the City Council.  Per OHMC 
18.20.270(1) the City Council may conduct a public hearing on theses legislative matters.  Since the City 
Council has historically done so, this item has been advertised as a public hearing.  At the conclusion of 
the public hearing it is recommended that the City Council approve the change in zoning for the properties 
from R-1, Single Family Residential to R-2, Limited Multifamily Residential.  A draft ordinance is 
provided that will change the site’s zoning and amend the zoning map as necessary (Attachment 3).

ATTACHMENTS
1. Planning Commission report dated February 23, 2016
2. Minutes from February 23, 2016 Planning Commission meeting
3. Ordinance No. 1758

191

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457136399_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457136437_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=915663fe092dad0787dd665b39d73eb8&aName=1457136478_at.pdf


Date: February 23, 2016 
Subject:  Rezoning three properties on SW 3rd 
Avenue (R13203-488-4830, R13203-488-4940, and 
R13203-488-5060) from R1, Single Family 
Residential to R2, Limited Multi-Family 

FROM: Cac Kamak, AICP 
Senior Planner 

Purpose 
The Planning Commission is requested to consider, through a public hearing process, the 
rezoning of three property located on SW 3rd Avenue from R1, Single Family Residential to 
R2, Limited Multi-Family.  The Land Use1 designation for this property was changed from 
Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential in 2015.  

This rezoning process follows through on the 2015 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
amendment and, if approved by the City Council, will officially amend the zoning map to 
implement the land use change.  

Public Notice and Comment 
Public notices of the hearing were done in accordance with the requirements of the Oak 
Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 18.20.  These notices included site posting, letters sent to 
the affected property owners and owners of properties within 300 feet of the affected 
properties, and publishing in the local newspaper.   

Background  
Valley High Investments Incorporated (applicant) owns two properties along SW 3rd Avenue.  
One property (185 SW 3rd Avenue) has a single family residence on it, and the other is 
vacant.  The properties are each approximately 44,000 square feet in area and therefore 
substantially larger than the 7,200 square feet minimum lot size requirements in the current 
R-1 Single Family Residential District.  The applicant believes that these properties can be 
developed at a higher density and has therefore requested a land use change.   

To the east of the properties owned by Valley High Investments is a single parcel owned by 
the Oak Harbor School District (OHSD).  This property is currently vacant of structures but 
has an access road into the Oak Harbor Middle School.  The OHSD does not have plans to 
change the use of their property, however, Valley High Investments Incorporated has 
included the property in the requested change since it creates a better transition to the high 

1 “Land Uses” vs. “Zoning” – “Land Uses” are designated by the Future Land Use Map in the Comprehensive 
Plan and are considered a planning tool.  “Zoning” is designated by the Zoning Map and is an implementation 
tool along with the Zoning Ordinance. 

City of Oak Harbor 
Report to the Planning 
Commission 

25

ATTACHMENT 1

192



density residential uses along Oak Harbor Road to the east.  The OHSD is not opposed to 
their inclusion in this amendment. 

The requested land use change for the properties was approved with the 2015 Comprehensive 
Plan Amendments.  This rezoning process, if approved, will amend the zoning map and 
allow the implementation of the change. 

Site Characteristics 
The properties are mostly flat and devoid of any sudden slope changes. As mentioned above, 
there is a single family residence on the western most property of the three included in the 
request.  The property to the west of the subject property is a church (Assembly of God), and 
the church’s parsonage is adjacent to the single family residence on the applicant’s property. 
To the north and across the street is another church (First Reformed Church).  To the east, the 
properties are developed with multifamily residential structures along Oak Harbor Road.  
Oak Harbor Middle School lies south of the subject properties.  

Sewer and water are available to the properties from SW 3rd Avenue.  SW 3rd Avenue is 
primarily a two lane asphalt street with ditches on either side for drainage.  The south side of 
SW 3rd Avenue has sidewalks adjacent to the property.   

26

ATTACHMENT 1

193



Rezoning Criteria 
While the long term land use vision for properties is embodied in the Future Land Use Map 
designation of the Comprehensive Plan, the specific zoning of the site implements the vision.  
Therefore, since the land use designation was changed to Medium Density Residential, the 
corresponding zoning district R2, Limited Multi-Family must also be adopted.  In 
considering this rezoning change, the request is reviewed against the criteria listed in OHMC 
19.75.020.   

(i) The proposed rezone is in the best interest of the residents of the city; 
The rezoning of this property will allow it to be developed at a higher density.  
Developing property within the city where utilities are already available avoids 
infrastructure extension cost and is an efficient use of land and therefore benefits its 
residence. Using existing infrastructure efficiently is in the best interest of the city. 

(ii) The proposed rezone is appropriate because either: 

(A) Conditions in the immediate vicinity of the subject property or within the city 
have so significantly changed since the property was given its present zoning that, 
under those changed conditions, a rezone is within the public interest; or 

(B) The rezone will correct a zone classification or zone boundary that was 
inappropriate when established; or 

(C) The proposed rezone is consistent with the comprehensive plan; or 
This criteria is more applicable than the other criteria since the Comprehensive 
Plan was amended in December 2015 and this process is following through with 
the City Council’s approval and implementing the zoning based on the amended 
land use. 

(D) The proposed rezone is consistent with all applicable provisions of this title 
including any specific design criteria; 

(iii) The proposed rezone bears a substantial relation to the public health, safety, and 
welfare; 
The proposed rezone will allow higher density residential development where utilities 
are already available, thus making this change a more efficient use of the existing 
infrastructure.  This bears a substantial relation to the public health and welfare 
since more units are served without building additional public infrastructure. 

(iv) A site plan of the proposed project, if considered, is designed to minimize all 
significant adverse impacts on other properties; 
Not applicable  

(v) A site plan, if considered, is designed to minimize impacts upon the public facilities, 
services and utilities; 

27

ATTACHMENT 1

194



Not applicable 

(vi) The proposal is not inconsistent with the surrounding area; 
 The amendment requested will increase the allowed density of the property from 3-6 
units per acre to 3-12 units per acre.  This increase in density is not uncharacteristic 
of this area that has high density residential uses immediately adjacent to the east.  
The other uses surrounding the properties are two churches and a school which 
would be minimally impacted from the increased density.   

(vii) If applicable, that there is a means of developing, preserving, and maintaining open 
space; 
Not applicable 

(viii) All conditions necessary to lessen any impacts of the proposed use can be 
monitored and enforced. 
The zoning ordinance and development regulations should be sufficient to address 
any impacts that the proposed use may have on adjacent properties.  

Recommendations 
1. Conduct public hearing
2. Forward a recommendation to the City Council.

Attachments: 
1. Location Map of property

28

ATTACHMENT 1

195



PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE - ATTACHMENT 1

29 196



Planning Commission 
February 23, 2016 

were also run through ranking process and didn't score well.  Mr. Peterschmidt also displayed a 
video clip which helped explained what a "road diet" is.  

Planning Commission Questions and Comments 
Commissioners questioned staff about how the public was invited to the open house, how lane 
reductions would be made to accommodate bike lanes.  They pointed out that the lack of curbs 
and gutters and large drop-offs along some of our streets could be hazardous for bikers.  There 
was a comment that bikers don’t ride in bike lanes because of debris.  They also asked about 
funds for the maintenance of bicycle lanes.  

Mr. Lefevre reported that staff and the consultant team would be back to the Planning 
Commission in March with information about cost estimates and revenue sources. 

5. SW 3rd Avenue - REZONING FROM R1, LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL TO R2,
LIMITED MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL - Public Hearing

Mr. Kamak reported that this zoning change is a follow-up to 2015 Comprehensive Plan land 
use map amendment and is a zoning changed from R1 to R2.  Mr. Kamak displayed a 
PowerPoint presentation (Attachment 2) which identified the properties and the review criteria 
for the zoning change. 

Mr. Wasinger opened the public hearing for public comment at 8:02 p.m.  Seeing none the 
public hearing was closed at 8:03 p.m. 

Motion:  Cecil Pierce moved to forward a recommendation to City Council to approve the 
rezoning of the three properties on SW 3rd Avenue from R1 to R2. Motion seconded by Jes 
Walker-Wyse, unanimously approved. 

6. 2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting

Cac Kamak displayed a PowerPoint (Attachment 3) which reviewed the draft land use element 
and draft housing element.  Mr. Kamak also noted that Island County planners were present 
and would address growth allocations. 

Mr. Kamak reported that the Land Use Element is a major rewrite.  The major changes include 
generalized land use goals and policies, generalize land use map, new neighborhoods and a 
new challenges and opportunities section. Minor changes include changes to existing 
conditions, land use distribution and inventories.  Mr. Kamak also reviewed land use inventory 
by land use category.  

Mr. Kamak reported that the Housing Element is a minor update of data and refined policies but 
the established goals and original structure are maintained. Staff have looked at population 
growth, housing ownership, household size, densities by development and housing affordability 
based on a State study done on Counties.  Mr. Kamak stated that a Housing Needs section 
would be added to the Housing Element.  Mr. Kamak reported that we would need 1,629 new 
units to accommodate the population projections and based on the buildable lands analysis we 
have enough capacity to accommodate the housing needs.  Mr. Kamak detailed how the 
buildable lands analysis was calculated. 

ATTACHMENT 2

197

gifford
Highlight

gifford
Highlight



p:\boards and committees gs2012-027 (6yrs xfr)\city council\cc\16\03-15-16\sw 3rd street rezoning ord\sw 
3rd street street rz ordinance.docx 

ORDINANCE NO.  1758      

AN ORDINANCE REZONING CERTAIN PROPERTIES FROM R-1 (SINGLE 
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO R-2 (LIMITED MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL). 

WHEREAS, Valley High Investments, the owner of properties R13203-488-4830 and 
R13203-348-4940 located at 185 SW 3rd Street and the Oak Harbor School District, owner 
of property R13203-488-5060 wish to rezone their property from R-1, Single Family 
Residential to R-2, Limited Multifamily Residential; and  

WHEREAS, the properties were the subject of a Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use 
Designation Map amendment in 2015 changing their designation from Low Density 
Residential to Medium Density Residential; and  

WHEREAS, a SEPA checklist was prepared for the land use map amendment (and 
rezoning) and was submitted on October 15, 2015 with appropriate notice to the public; 
and  

WHEREAS, a SEPA Determination of Nonsignificance was issued on November 9, 2015 
with a 14 day appeal period ending on November 24, 2015, which received no 
substantive comment; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on December 1, 2015 and approved 
the land use map amendment for these properties, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on this property rezoning was held before the Planning 
Commission of the City of Oak Harbor on February 23, 2016, and said hearing was 
published as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, the zone change has been recommended for approval by the Planning 
Commission on February 23, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council conducted a public hearing on the proposed rezoning on 
March 15, 2016; and   

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor do ordain as follows: 

Section One:  The following described property situated in the County of Island, State of 
Washington, is rezoned from R-1, Single Family Residential to R-2, Limited Multifamily 
Residential: 

Legal Description 

PARCELS: 

That portion of the Ulrich Freund Donation Claim, located in Section 3, Township 32 

198



p:\boards and committees gs2012-027 (6yrs xfr)\city council\cc\16\03-15-16\sw 3rd street rezoning ord\sw 
3rd street street rz ordinance.docx 

North, Range 1 East W.M., described as follows: 

Beginning at a point 823.85 feet South of the Northeast corner of the Ulrich Freund 
Donation Claim; thence West 569.75 feet to the true point of beginning; thence West 
109.68 feet; thence south 399 feet; thence East 109.68; thence North 399 feet to the true 
point of beginning. 

Situated in the County of  Island, State of Washington. 

AND 

That portion of the Ulrich Freund Donation Claim, located in Section 3, Township 32 
North, Range 1 East W.M., described as follows: 

Beginning at a point 823.85 feet South of the Northeast corner of the Ulrich Freund 
Donation Claim; thence West 460.75 feet to the true point of beginning; thence West 109 
feet; thence south 399 feet; thence East 109; thence North 399 feet to the true point of 
beginning. 

Situated in the County of  Island, State of Washington. 

AND 

That portion of the Ulrich Freund Donation Claim, located in Section 3, Township 32 
North, Range 1 East W.M., described as follows: 

Beginning at a point 823.85 feet South of the Northeast corner of the Ulrich Freund 
Donation Claim; thence West 351.75 feet to the true point of beginning; thence West 109 
feet; thence south 399 feet; thence East 109; thence North 399 feet to the true point of 
beginning. 

Situated in the County of  Island, State of Washington. 

Section Two:  The official zoning map shall be changed accordingly. 

Section Three:  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect five days 
after the date of publication. 

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 15th day of March, 2016. 

199



p:\boards and committees gs2012-027 (6yrs xfr)\city council\cc\16\03-15-16\sw 3rd street rezoning ord\sw 
3rd street street rz ordinance.docx 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Approved  (  ) ______________________ 
Vetoed  (  )     Bob Severns, Mayor 

______________________ 
Date 

ATTEST: Approved as to Form: 

_____________________ ______________________ 
City Clerk  City Attorney 

Published:____________ 

200


	Agenda for March 15, 2016 Regular City Council Meeting
	2.c.i  Fire Department 2015 Annual Report
	 Oak Harbor Fire Department 2015 Annual Report

	C/A 4.a  Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on March 1, 2016
	 3/01/2016 Minutes

	C/A 4.b  Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers 
	 Voucher Listing

	C/A 4.c  Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member
	C/A 4.d  Re-appointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board
	C/A 4.e  Interlocal Agreement for HVAC Unit Replacement at Oak Harbor Library
	 Proposed Interlocal Agreement between SVC & City for HVAC Replacement
	 Letter of Understanding & Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC & City 1990
	 Amendment One to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between SVC & City 1990

	C/A 4.f  Tyler Technologies Agreement - Tyler Cashiering Software
	 Sales Quotation for Cashiering Software plus Training and Hardware

	C/A 4.g  Purchase Authorization - Police Department Copier
	C/A 4.h  Janitorial Contract Services Extension
	 Master Contract
	 Extension Letter 2016

	C/A 4.i  Prothman PSA: HR Director Recruitment
	 Proposal for Recruitment Services - Prothman

	5.a.i  Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
	 3/15/2016 Report

	6.a  Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-2018 Wastewater Rates
	6.b  Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd Avenue Properties Rezoning
	 Planning Commission report dated February 23, 2016
	 Minutes from February 23, 2016 Planning Commission meeting
	 Ordinance No. 1758




